

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2020   


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on December 2, 2020. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting December 2, 2020 - Page 1 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda (Estimated Time)  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m.  


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session 
Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


If you have a comment regarding an item on the 
agenda prior to closed session, please submit your 
comment via email to boardclerk@sccs.net. 


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


5:35 p.m. Information for possible action 


2.2. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (Govt. 
Code Section 54957)  


5:40 p.m. Information for possible action 


2.3. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. Code 
Section 54957.6)  


5:45 p.m. SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update 
to and receive direction from Trustees regarding 
negotiations with the GSCFT. 


3. Convene Open Session 6:00 p.m. 


3.1. Roll Call  


4. Public Comments For presentations of matters not on the Agenda.  
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to members of the public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting. Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued. Per Santa Cruz City School Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


 


1/175







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2020   


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on December 2, 2020. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting December 2, 2020 - Page 2 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


5. Superintendent’s Report 6:05 p.m. 


5.1. Superintendent’s Report  


5.2. Students’ Report  


   
6. Board Members’ Reports 6:15 p.m. 


6.1. Board Members’ Reports  


6.2. Board President’s Report  


   
7. Approval of Minutes 6:30 p.m. 


7.1. Meeting October 21, 2020  


7.2. Meeting October 28, 2020  


7.3. Meeting November 4, 2020  


7.4. Meeting November 9, 2020 


 


 


8. General Public Business 6:35 p.m. 


8.1. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.1.1. North Bay Ford Purchase  


8.1.2. Amayas Locating Services, LLC Proposal  


8.1.3. Annual Renewal of Services Agreement: Super 
Co-Op 


 


8.1.4 Geo H. Wilson: Mission Hill Middle School 
Ventilation Repair 


 


8.1.5 Geo H Wilson: Santa Cruz High School 
Ventilation Repair 


 


8.1.6 Geo H. Wilson: Gault Elementary School 
Ventilation Repair 


 


8.1.7. Geo H. Wilson: Westlake Elementary School 
Ventilation Repair 


 


2/175







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2020   


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on December 2, 2020. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting December 2, 2020 - Page 3 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects Contracts, 
Agreements, Proposals, Bids & Change 
Orders 


 


8.2.1. Development Group Inc: Change Order 3: 
Branciforte Middle School Network Cabling 


 


8.2.2. Development Group Inc: Change Order 3: 
Gault Elementary School Data Installation 


 


8.2.3. Development Group Inc: Proposal: Westlake 
Elementary School Network Cabling  


 


8.2.4. Kleinfelder: Proposal: Geotechnical Services 
Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family 
Education 


 


8.2.5. Moore Twining: Proposal: Santa Cruz High 
School Geotechnical Engineering for New 
Switchgear 


 


8.2.6. Moore Twining: Change Order 1: Santa Cruz 
High School Underground Utility Replacement 
Special Inspection and Materials Testing   


 


8.2.7. Netxperts Inc.: Proposal: Districtwide Router 
Installation Cover 


 


8.2.8. Nor Cal Catering Truck Repair: Quote: Food 
Truck Fabrication 


 


8.2.9. Palace Business Solutions: Proposal: Soquel 
High School Science Tables 


 


8.2.10. PSR Electric: Proposal: Branciforte Small 
Schools Alternative Family Education Electrical 
Safe Off 


 


8.2.11. PSR Electric: Proposal: Mission Hill Middle 
School Switchgear Electrical Work 


 


8.2.12. PSR Electric: Proposal: Santa Cruz High 
School Switchgear Electrical Work 


 


8.2.13. Santa Cruz Signs: Quote: Westlake Elementary 
School Lift Signage 


 


3/175







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2020   


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on December 2, 2020. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting December 2, 2020 - Page 4 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2.14. Sierra School Equipment: Change Order 1: 
Soquel High School Classroom Furniture 
Installation 


 


8.2.15. Waterproofing Associates: Contract: Harbor 
High School PA Building Roof 


 


   


8.3. Report of Closed Session Actions  6:40 p.m. 


8.3.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.4. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


8.4.1. Governance/Superintendent  


8.4.1.1. New Business: Hybrid Instructional Timeline 6:45 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the 
recommendation to delay action on a timeline to 
implement Hybrid Instruction until the virus is not 
widespread, and approve recommendation for an 
eventual staggered implementation of Hybrid Instruction. 


  


8.4.2. Human Resources  


8.4.2.1. New Business: District and Bond 
Communications 


7:15 p.m. Recommendation: Approve the job description 
for the position of Public Information Officer. 


8.4.3. Business Services  


8.4.3.1. Staff Report: Bond Project & Maintenance, 
Operations and Transportation Reorganization 


7:45 p.m. Staff will present a report on a proposed 
reorganization of Bond staffing and support. 


   


8.4.4. Discussion: Potential Items for Future Agenda 8:15 p.m. 


 


9. Adjournment  


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


4/175







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


SPECIAL MEETING 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 2, 2020   


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:00 P.M. 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to submit public comment on a closed session 


item in lieu of speaking on zoom, please email the Board Clerk at boardclerk@sccs.net 


by 12:00 p.m. on December 2, 2020. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Special Meeting December 2, 2020 - Page 5 of 5 


 Item Purpose / Support 


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


   
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education or may be viewed at the District Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, 
CA 95060. 
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Alyssa 
Martinez by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Alyssa Martinez por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Special Meeting on December 2, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


2. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


3. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


6. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


13. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


14. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


5/175







Superintendent’s Report 


Interventions During 


Distance Learning 
December 2, 2020


6/175







Small Cohorts 


● No more than 14 students and no more than two supervising adults (16 total)


● Stable groupings


● Specialized services for high need students: speech and language services, behavioral 


services and educational support services as part of an intervention


● Screening Protocol to identify Tier 3 students


○ Lack of participation and engagement


○ Lack of academic progress


○ Special Day Class students


○ English Learner Newcomer students not making progress


○ Students in need of behavioral and social-emotional support


● Small Cohorts have been established at all 10 sites and more are planned7/175







Students Served In-Person Small Cohorts


Academic Cohorts - 267 Students (Expanding further after Thanksgiving adding 


30 more students with additional expansion after Winter Break)


Athletic Conditioning Cohorts - 510 Students


Music Cohorts - 98 Students


Other Program Cohorts - Drama (HHS 20) Sustainable Agriculture (SHS 10)


8/175







Elementary Academic Interventions 


Tier 2:


● Small group academic support in Math and English Language Arts 2 


times a week for 30 minutes with teacher


● Small group reading and math  intervention groups with 


paraeducators 4 times a week for 20 minutes


● Retired Teacher Project: Small group English Language Arts & Math 


reteaching


● Assigned Office Hours for reteaching


● Small group breakout rooms for guided practice
9/175







Elementary Academic Interventions 


Tier 2 & 3


● Small group guided reading support 3 to 4 times a week for 30 


minutes (with support staff [in addition to teacher sessions])


● 1:1 Reading Fluency & Comprehension (4th & 5th) for 15 minutes 4 


times a week


● In person small cohort - 1:1 support to students on assignments


10/175







Elementary Social Emotional Supports


● Zoom Lunch Bunch - led by classroom aide


● Virtual Check In and Check Out


● Small Group and 1:1 counseling


● Home Visits


● Individualized Visual Schedules


11/175







Elementary Challenges with Interventions in 


Distance Learning


● Students logging on for extra support after the regular school day


● Extended screen time


● Intermittent Connectivity/Technology Issues


● Existing staff available to work after school hours


● Qualified candidates to support after school interventions


● Families struggle to support students at home


12/175







Middle School Academic Interventions


MATH


● iReady “My Path” - Math intervention program 


used w/in math classes and in after school support 


programs (Tier 1, 2 & 3)


● B40 0 Period Math+ & MH Mindset Math -before 


school or replaces elective  (Tier 3 intervention)


● B40 AAA & MH Study Club - after school support 


in Math and Reading (Tier 2&3)


● MHMS WAVE Program - 1:1 and small group 


tutoring w focus in Math/Reading but also all 


content areas


● Push-in Math Support - RtI, SPED teachers  and 


paras in Math classes, support both SPED and gen 


ed students. (Tier 1, 2, & 3)


● UCSC Tutors- 1:1 tutoring from UCSC students for 


both math and ELA support


READING


● iReady “My Path” - Reading intervention program 


used w/in ELA & ELD classes and in after school 


support programs (Tier 1, 2, & 3)


● Achieve 3000/Read 180 - takes place of elective and 


is used in Designated ELD classes (Tier 2&3)


● B40 AAA & MH Study Club - after school support in 


Math and Reading (Tier 2&3)


● MHMS WAVE Program - 1:1 and small group tutoring 


w focus in Math/Reading but also all content areas


● Push-in ELA Support - SPED teachers and paras in 


ELA classes, support both SPED and gen ed students


● System 44 - Tier 3 intervention program, used in SDC, 


Read 180, and Resource classes


13/175







Middle School Academic Supports


GENERAL EDUCATION


● Small Cohorts - targeted EL/SEL groups of 14 


students each on campus with an instructor 


● Academic Literacy - Tier 3 intervention, 2 


classes, takes place of elective


● AVID - Tier 3 intervention class, 1 section/grade 


level, supports ELs and non-ELs, ELs close to 


reclass but needing executive function supports 


benefit from this class.


● Read 180 - Tier 3 intervention class, ELs close to 


reclass but needing targeted reading support 


benefit from this class.


● Newcomer Push-in Supports - 2 


paraprofessionals who push-in to general 


education classes of newcomers


SPECIAL EDUCATION


● Achieve 3000/Read 180 - Tier 3 intervention, 


replaces elective or is used in Support Classes


● Study Skills - Tier 3 intervention, replaces elective, 1 


section/grade level


● Push-in Support in gen ed classes - both SPED 


paras and teachers push into gen ed classes to 


provide support to SPED and gen ed students.


● iReady “My Path” - Tier 2 Reading intervention 


program used w/in Study Skills classes and in after 


school support programs.


● System 44 - Tier 3 reading intervention program 


used in classes as needed


14/175







Middle School Social-Emotional Supports


● Counseling Check-ins - RTI Coordinator and Counselors meet with all D/F students to make 


plan to increase grade(s), these staff also meet regularly 1:1 w/ students on their caseload for 


academic and social-emotional support


● Student Support Team - Weekly meeting of counseling, RtI, attendance, and admin to 


discuss and monitor students of concern


● “Second Step” - Social-Emotional Learning curriculum used at B40, taught in all departments 


to help support student social and emotional well-being and growth mindset brain development


● Home Visits - Admin, Counselors and support staff make home visits to support attendance, 


connectivity issues, other social-emotional needs


● MENtors - small group intervention for boys who need social-emotional support


● Arts Academy - after school enrichment classes that include cooking, baile folklorico, and 


yearbook


● Targeted Clubs - School Counselor and/or teachers run small group intervention via clubs or 


other (ex. bullet journaling, mindfulness, Rainbow Alliance, executive functioning, social needs)


● BASTA - wrap around support for “at risk” youth


● PBIS - positive behavior system schoolwide to support all students in making good decisions
15/175







Middle School Challenges w/ Interventions in Distance Learning


● Students/families do not want more Zoom time before or after 


school


● Hard to find staff to fill all needed/wanted intervention positions


● With less overall instructional time, staff are more reluctant to use 


any class time for interventions 


16/175







Small Schools Academic Interventions


Monarch Community 


School


➢ Targeted intermediate small 


group math tutoring 1 hr. twice 


weekly


➢ Targeted primary small group 


and individual writing tutoring                    


45 min twice weekly


➢ Small in-person cohorts on 


campus


➢ Individual appointments during 


teacher office hours for directed 


support


➢ Targeted small group instruction 


during Workshops


➢ Individualized visual schedules


Costanoa High School


➢ Implementation of MAP 


assessment in Reading & Math, 


as well as internal writing 


assessment for Winter 2020 to 


drive upcoming academic 


interventions


➢ Move to a collaborative teaching, 


cohort model to streamline service 


for students


➢ Individual appointments with 


instructional staff (teachers & 


paraeducators) for directed 


support


➢ Conferences each quarter to 


discuss attendance & credit 


progress


➢ Piloting small cohorts when safe.


Ark Independent High 


School


➢ Targeted, individual math 


support offered Tuesday 


through Thursday


➢ Targeted, individual 


instruction during weekly 


sessions with consultant 


teachers


➢ Individualized assignment 


sheets


➢ Individualized reading 


plans developed based on 


teacher recommendation 


and/or assessment data


17/175







Small Schools Social Emotional Supports


Monarch Community 


School


➢ Social Emotional counselor 


weekly meetings with students


➢ Community coordinator weekly 


check ins with families-referrals 


to services as needed


➢ S/E curriculum integrated into 


daily instruction


➢ Home visits


➢ Community based Zoom social 


interactions (family BINGO, 


Breathe and Draw, lunch 


bunch, D&D, etc.)


Costanoa High School


➢ Weekly Restorative Justice Circles 


facilitated in Advisory class


➢ Weekly Team Intervention Process 


(TIP) discussion in staff meeting


➢ Weekly Attendance & Counseling 


meeting with counselor, mental 


health providers, school psych, 


district social workers, community 


coordinator & attendance clerk to 


discuss students of concern & 


devise action plans


➢ Weekly social emotional referral 


check-in


➢ “Wednesday Sessions” and 


afterschool enrichment 


opportunities for increased 


connection with extended staff


Ark Independent High 


School


➢ Weekly Attendance & 


Counseling meeting with key 


staff members to discuss 


students of concern & devise 


action plans (see Costanoa)


➢ Daily class meetings for 


students in 100% Edgenuity 


program


➢ Access to our on site Mental 


Health Specialist


➢ Weekly staff meetings where 


students of concern protocol is 


a running topic


➢ Young Women’s Group 


meeting every 2 weeks18/175







Small Schools Challenges with Interventions in 


Distance Learning


Monarch Community 


School


➢ Several families declined 


tutoring services as Zoom is 


a difficult medium for young 


children


➢ Shortage of Classified 


employees to take on 


additional responsibilities 


➢ Hiring Classified folks for 


part-time, in person 


supervision during the 


pandemic


Costanoa High School


➢ Several families & students not 


interested in additional zoom 


sessions or attending small 


cohorts


➢ Shortage of Classified 


employees to take on additional 


responsibilities 


➢ Hiring Classified staff for part-


time, in person supervision 


during the pandemic


Ark Independent High 


School


➢ Shortage of Classified 


employees to take on additional 


responsibilities 


➢ Hiring Classified staff for part-


time, in person supervision 


during the pandemic


➢ Some students struggling in 


accessing math during distance 


learning


19/175







High School Academic Interventions 


● Virtual Tutoring Center afterschool to support students in all core areas (hired 


tutors and peer tutors) 


● Small Cohorts 
○ Internet Cafes


○ 12th Grade Support


○ Sustainable Agriculture


○ Band


○ Drama


● Math Plus 


● Literacy Support 


● RTI coordinators, Math and English Language Arts


● Classified staff calling D/F students to work on goal setting and completing 


tasks. 20/175







High School Academic Interventions


● Teachers tutor students individually during the asynchronous time


● Compassionate grading policies


○ Teachers allow late work with no penalty


○ Test retakes if student fails test


○ Units of study 


● Guide with videos to support development of study skills, designed to be used 


in collaboration with parents


● Executive functioning discussion group


● After School Virtual Tutoring
21/175







High School Social Emotional Supports


Anxiety Support Group


Depression Support Group


Executive Functioning Support Group


Encompass Community Services Counseling


Social Workers and Social Worker Interns


Ongoing Student Study Teams


High School Counselor Google Meets


22/175







High School Challenges with Interventions in 


Distance Learning


● Extended screen time


● Intermittent Connectivity/Technology Issues


● Family/Work Obligations


● Staff available to support intervention outside of the school day


● Students logging on for extra support after logging off from the regular school 


day


● Families struggle to support students at home


23/175







Social Workers and Interns  
● Telehealth and socially distanced counseling


● Group counseling


● Home Visits to assist students and families with attendance concerns


● Collaboration and intervention with school site teams regarding students with 


D/F grades


● Supervision and management of eight social work interns


● Food distribution to our most vulnerable families 


● Basic needs assessments for students and families to support food, clothing, 


shelter, and technology (due to COVID)


● Crisis Response 24/175







Attendance Interventions TK-12 


● Daily phone calls to absent students


● Home Visits


● Monthly newsletter focus on attendance and engagement


● Attendance letters (Truancy)


● Weekly or Bimonthly meetings of Participation and Attendance Review Team 


(PART) or Student Attendance Review Team (SART) to identify students and 


determine next steps


○ Tier and SST meetings


○ Social Worker Referral


○ Counselor Referral


○ Referral to Student Services 
25/175







Attendance Rates Per Site  


School Sept. 2019 Sept. 2020 Oct. 2019 Oct. 2020 Nov. 2019 Nov. 2020


Bay View 96% 96.6% 95.2% 96.7% 95% 96.7%


DeLaveaga 97% 97.5% 96.6% 97.3% 96.3% 97.4%


Gault 96% 96.2% 95.4% 96% 95.3% 96%


Westlake 97% 97.5% 96.6% 97.5% 96.5% 97.5%


BSSC 94.4% 92% 93.3% 87% 92.4% 89.7%


B40MS 96.8% 98% 96.5% 97.7% 96% 97.5%


MHMS 96.8% 98.6% 96.5% 98.6% 95.8% 98.6%


HHS 96.8% 98% 96.3% 97.6% 95.7% 97.4%


SCHS 97.5% 98.6% 97.2% 98.5% 96.7% 98.5%


SHS 97% 97.6% 96.6% 97.6% 96% 97.7%26/175







Flowchart for Attendance Supports: Site-Based


Attendance Team Leads:


● Create Daily Absence 


Report


● Color code by number 


of consecutive days 


absent


● Assign students for 


follow-up by team 


members


Attendance Team:
● Meet weekly to discuss 


cases of no contact/no 


improvement


● Discuss interventions, 


including home visits


● Students who are absent 


for five full consecutive 


days are added to district 


Attendance spreadsheet


AP + Campus Supervisors + 


Counselors:


● Home visits to those 


identified by 


attendance team 


Social Worker/Intern:


● Home visits to those 


on caseload or district 


attendance list


Attendance Clerk:


● Shares Chronic Absentee List weekly and 


students are assigned to team members for 


follow-up


Teachers:


● Fill out Student Support Request form as 


student attendance concerns occur


A
ll


-D
a


y
 A


b
s


e
n


c
e


s
C


la
s


s
 P


e
ri


o
d


 


A
b


s
e


n
c


e
s


 


● Attendance team and counseling team 


collaborate to define which interventions are 


needed and who will offer support as “case 


manager” 


● Use D/F list, student support forms, daily and 


chronic absentee notes, emails, home visit 


notes, and engagement logs to inform support


Daily Weekly
Ongoing+


Identifying Students Supporting Students


27/175







Attendance Referrals to Student Services


School site Attendance 


Teams: 


● Enters student contact 


information into shared 


Attendance 


spreadsheet for 


students who are 


absent for five full 


consecutive days


Student Services:


● Meets weekly to 


discuss student 


referrals


● Social worker 


interventions and 


outreach including 


home visits


Social Worker/Intern:


● Phone calls, text 


messages, and emails 


to families 


● Home visits to families


● Home Visits


● Telehealth counseling 


● In person socially distanced counseling


● Referral to Encompass for mental health or substance use


● Referral to Broad-based, Accountability, Support, Treatment and 


Alternatives (BASTA) 


● Welfare Checks 


● SARB


Daily Weekly


Monthly Interventions for Students Not Attending  


28/175







High School Failure Rate 2nd Grading Period


School
(Enrollment 


change)


Fall 2019 D/F
(HHS/SHS 12 wk progress, 


SCHS Q2 progress)


N (percent students with 


one or more of that grade)


Fall 2020 D/F
(HHS/SHS 12 wk 


progress, SCHS Q2 


progress)


N (percent students with 


one or more of that grade)


Fall 2019 


Seniors At-Risk
(seniors failing a course 


potentially needed for 


graduation)


Fall 2019 


Juniors At-Risk


Fall 2020 


Seniors At Risk
(seniors failing a course 


potentially needed for 


graduation)


Harbor High
(+100 


students/11% 


increase)


D - 291 (31%)


F - 205 (22%)


D - 318 (31%)


F - 328 (32%)


62 seniors with 


114 course 


grades lower 


than C-


102 juniors 


with 241 


grades below 


C-


106 seniors with 


290 course 


grades lower than 


C-


Santa Cruz 


High
(-24 students /-


2% decrease)


D- 235 (21.7%)


F- 187 (17.3%)


D- 203  (19%)


F- 255  (24%)
80 seniors with 


106 course 


grades lower 


than C-


87 juniors with 


136 grades 


below C-


80 seniors with 


140 course 


grades lower than 


C-


Soquel High
(-44 students/-


4% decrease)


D- 254 (23.6%)


F- 123 (11.4%)


D- 119 (12%)


F- 329 (32%)


43 seniors with 


73 course 


grades lower 


than C-


103 (35.5%) 


juniors with 


193 grades 


below C-


98 seniors with 


209 course 


grades lower than 


C-


29/175







Nationwide High School Failure Rates Have 


Increased with Distance Learning


Last month, The Mercury News reported the Bay Area schools are seeing D and F 


rates double


Washington Post reported that Fairfax County Public Schools have seen an 83% 


increase in failing grades


Los Angeles Times reported  that Carlsbad Unified in San Diego has seen failing 


grades more than double 


30/175







Addressing Course Failure and Learning Loss


● Implemented academic interventions and social emotional supports 


are designed to address course failure and learning loss 


● Increased credit recovery opportunities - school year and summer


● Demonstrating mastery with summative assignments / tests


● Proctored in-person assessments


● Focused time with individuals & small groups after synchronous 


instruction


● Additional high school small cohorts 


● More marketing of virtual tutoring options


● Explore adding a 7th period to HHS & SHS schedules for 2021-22


31/175







Learning Continuity & Attendance Plan Budget to 


Address Pupil Learning Loss 
Distance Learning Learning Loss Actions and Funding


Action Funding


Hotspots for students who need connectivity to participate in distance learning Elementary $32,147.08 


Secondary $45,330.48


Student Chromebooks for students who need a device to participate in distance learning Elementary $425,130


Secondary $789,528


● Educational Apps, Curriculum and Tools for Distance Learning including monitors 


and doc cameras to allow for split screens and casting


● Educational apps support student engagement and rigor in an online environment


● Digital curriculum to allow for continued standards-based instruction in distance 


learning


Elementary $235,960.30 


Secondary $598,932.81


● Student Supplies, including art and music supplies to allow for implementation of 


these subjects in distance learning


● Basic supplies for low income and homeless students


Elementary $118,900  


Secondary $36,500


32/175







Learning Continuity & Attendance Budget to Address 


Pupil Learning Loss 
Pupil Learning Loss Actions and Funding


Action Funding


● Extra hourly pay for staff to conduct small group virtual or in person small cohort 


tutoring beyond the school day for high needs student groups including English 


learners, Special Education students and homeless or displaced students


● One-on-one Special Education assessments.


Elementary $23,470 


Secondary $43,130


Small Group Student Tutoring and Intervention to address address learning loss in high 


needs student groups including English learners, Special Education students and homeless 


or displaced students (20 hours per week per site) 


Elementary $103,342 


Secondary $224,178


Additional school site allocations are provided to address and customize learning loss 


efforts(site allocations will allow School Site Councils to identify site specific needs)


Elementary $114,769 


Secondary $257,873


33/175







Learning Continuity & Attendance Plan Budget to 


Address Pupil Learning Loss 


Additional Actions and Funding


Action Funding


Software and online academic platforms to support online instruction, standards-


based teaching, student engagement and student skill building to mitigate learning 


loss


Elementary $40,890.73


Secondary $71,359.39


Family Support Network to allow for district family collaboration and support for 


students by families in distance learning. Includes strategies to support students 


social emotional health


Secondary $10,800


34/175







MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
OCTOBER 21, 2020 


 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Ranii called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Ranii called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty  John Owen  Cindy Ranii   Deb Tracy-Proulx  
Jeremy Shonick   Patricia Threet  Claudia Vestal  
 
Student Board Representative Sophie Nigh 
 
Absent:  Student Board Representative Xhu Lopez Guzman 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Ranii welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education.  President Ranii reviewed the meeting norms and meeting agreements and 
reminded all of the importance of maintaining the norms and agreements for effective governance. 
 
3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions, or Deletions & Announcements 
Superintendent Munro requested that Item 8.3.3. Resolution 16-20-21: Emergency Provision to Forgo Bid 
Process and Geo H. Wilson Quote: District Wide Air Balance and Equipment Survey Report be moved from 
Consent to Open Session.  
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Teacher Kathy Chaput from Bay View Elementary addressed the construction complications at Bay View 
Elementary. Ms. Chaput stated that a letter was sent to the Board regarding this issue that includes images of 
the construction. Ms. Chaput stated that  teachers’ storage needs are not being met with the construction. 
Ms. Chaput emphasized that she does not want any funding for other projects to be used at the expense of 
the storage.  
 


35/175







SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro reported attending the Santa Cruz County College and Career Collaborative Steering 
Committee  Meeting, as well as the Queer Youth Leadership Awards  Virtual Event. District staff has been 
conducting  home visits to families affected by the CZU Fires. Athletic Directors are preparing to start 
competitive sports. Superintendent Munro also reported on the small cohorts have started at Gault 
Elementary School and other sites will be adding cohorts in the coming weeks. Superintendent Munro also 
attended the SECA Operations Committee meeting in which SELPA funding models were evaluated. District 
Office Administration also hosted the Parent Leader Dinner in which attendees provided input on Distance 
Learning and student engagement. Superintendent Munro also addressed that Adult Education is significantly 
impacted at this time and suggested that parents could use their student’s Chromebook for Adult Education 
during non-school hours to participate in Adult Education classes.  
 
Student’s Report 
Student Board Representative Sophie Nigh reported that Soquel High School has been working on bettering 
community engagement. There is an upcoming event for the students to decorate the school for Día de Los 
Muertos. Student Representative Nigh also reported on a fundraiser at Panda Express to support Career 
Readiness.  
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 


Board Members’ Reports 
Trustee Vestal reported that she attended the Queer Youth Leadership Awards Virtual Event. Trustee Vestal 
acknowledge a quote from a student who stated, “I speak up for equity because I want everyone to feel safe.”  
 
Trustee Threet thanked those who reached out from the community and addressed the plans to discuss rental 
fees. Trustee Threet also acknowledged the death of Soquel Elementary School Teacher and community 
member Anna Seliskar and stated she will be missed.  
 
Trustee Owen stated that he may have to step away from the meeting from time to time as he is on site for 
the Luna Fire in New Mexico.  
 
Trustee Shonick addressed the death of Harry Dong, a local photographer who photographed many students 
in the Santa Cruz area for many years. Trustee Shonick stated that he was shocked to hear of his death and 
that he will be missed by all in the community.  
 
Vice President Coonerty did not have a report to share. 
 
Trustee Tracy-Proulx did not have a report to share. 
 
 
 
 
Board President’s Report 


36/175







Board President Ranii acknowledged that it is Administrator Appreciation Week. President Ranii expressed her 
appreciation for the Administrative Team at Santa Cruz City Schools  for their dedication during this 
challenging time.  
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. MSP (Vestal/Coonerty), 5-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the October 7, 2020 meeting.  
Trustee Shonick and Trustee Tracy-Proulx abstained from voting as they were absent from the October 7 
meeting. 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
 


Consent Agenda 
8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated, 8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified, 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids, & 
Quotes, 8.1.4. Warrant Register, 8.1.5. Budget Transfers, 8.1.6. Disposition of Surplus Property, 8.1.7. Budget 
Development Calendar, 8.1.8. First Quarter Williams Report, 8.1.9. LGBTQ Task Force Update, 8.1.10. Costanoa 
High School: Single Plan for Student Achievement, 8.1.11. Revised Classified Job Description: Office Assistant – 
District Office, 8.1.12. Gifts, 8.2.1.1. Out of State Travel Request, 8.2.1.2. Consultant Services Agreement: 
Trauma Informed Professional Development Services, 8.2.1.3. Agreement for Professional Services: 
Speechrighter, Inc., 8.3.1 CRW Industries: Change Order 1: Natural Bridges ADA Walkway, 8.3.2. Enviroplex: 
Change Order 1: Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education, 8.3.3. Resolution 16-20-21: 
Emergency Provision to Forgo Bid Process and Geo H. Wilson Quote: District Wide Air Balance and Equipment 
Survey Report, 8.3.4. Geo H Wilson: Quote: Westlake Elementary School Sewer Repairs, 8.3.5. Kleinfelder: 
Change Order 1: Westlake Elementary School Lower Campus Wheelchair Lift Replacement Testing, 8.3.6. M3 
Environmental: Proposal: Harbor High School Hazardous Materials Inspection of Arts Building Roof, 8.3.7. 
Mobile Modular: Quote: Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education Building Removal, 8.3.8. 
Moore Twining: Proposal: Santa Cruz High School Underground Utility Replacement Special Inspection and 
Materials Testing, 8.3.9. Oneida Air Systems: Quote: Santa Cruz High School Dust Collector. 
 
Vice President Coonerty motioned to approve the consent agenda except for items 8.1.10. Costanoa High 
School: Single Plan for Student Achievement, 8.2.1.2. Consultant Services Agreement: Trauma Informed 
Professional Development Services and 8.3.3. Resolution 16-20-21: Emergency Provision to Forgo Bid Process 
and Geo H. Wilson Quote: District Wide Air Balance and Equipment Survey Report. Trustee Owen seconded 
the motion. 
 
The motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote:  
Coonerty – Yes Owen – Yes  Ranii –  Yes 
Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx –  Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Items 
Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 
Board Vice President Coonerty reported the following actions during closed session: 
1. Ms. Parks shared information with the Board on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, 


Resignations & Appointments. 
2. Ms. Parks did not have any information to share with Trustees regarding Public Employee 


Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaints. 


37/175







3. The board acknowledged and thanked Bookshop Santa Cruz for their donation of gift cards for families 
impacted by the CZU Fire.  
 


ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 
 
8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Reopening Plan Update 


Staff provided an overview on the efforts the district has made to support students during 
distance learning and to reopen schools. Superintendent Munro shared about the agreement 
with Stanford Hospital to administer COVID tests for staff. Small cohort implementation is 
underway. Gault Elementary school began cohorts on October 19 and other sites will follow 
later in the month. Assistant Superintendent Coito addressed  input from the community and 
stakeholders about the reopening of school. A final commitment form was sent out to parents 
earlier in the week to procure updated data on whether parents will be sending their students 
back to school when it reopens in January. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. The 
report was informational in nature and no action was taken by the board.  
 
Public Comment: GSCFT President Casey Carlson addressed the board and expressed her 
concern for the teachers regarding the reopening the schools on January 4th, and asked that the 
board reconsider moving the date back to give teachers more time to prepare for in person 
instruction. Ms. Carlson acknowledged that it is not an ideal situation for any party and 
requested that the focus of reopening be kept at the local level.  
 
Public Comment: District teachers and staff members addressed the Board to express their 
concerns about the reopening of school. Concerns included feeling unprepared for the shift in 
teaching pedagogy, worries about health and safety measures on campus, increased workload 
for teachers, difficulties for employees with young children, and concerns for at risk 
populations. 


 
Public Comment: High School parent Dusten Dennis addressed the board about reopening 
schools. Mr. Dennis stated that his son is eager to go back to school next semester and noted 
that there are negative side-effects to students staying home. Mr. Dennis also noted that 
school incidents of infection are low and that he hopes the district will stay on track for the 
January reopening.  
 
Public Comment: High School parent Filipina Warren addressed the board and expressed her 
desire to have the district receive more input from the parents and students on the reopening. 
Ms. Filipina stated that she is in favor of the live streaming and expressed that she hopes the 
reopening will not be delayed.  


 
Public Comment: Parent and COVID-19 Nurse Rebecca Silberman addressed the board 
regarding the reopening of schools in January. Nurse Silberman stated that the concerns she 
has been hearing from teachers are valid, and suggested that teachers have a meeting with 
health professionals to address their concerns and to come up with a model for hybrid learning. 
Nurse Silberman stated she would not send her child to school if she did not believe it was safe. 


 
Public Comment: Community member Rocco Cappalla addressed the board on the reopening of 
schools in January. Mr. Cappalla stated that parents should be asked to weigh in on the 
reopening and that teachers and students should be given the option to return. Mr. Cappalla 


38/175







expressed concern about the lack of clarity on the options available and the data being used to 
support the reopening.   


 
8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Goals and Metrics Update 


Assistant Superintendent Coito and Directors of Curriculum Calden and Hodges presented the 
District’s Goals and Metrics. The purpose of having metrics for each of the District Goals is to 
have a way of measuring the district’s success in meeting these goals each year. Ultimately, 
these metrics are a way of measuring the impact on student learning and whether student 
needs are being met or not.  Assistant Superintendent Coito acknowledged that the some of the 
metrics presented this school year are not available due to impact of COVID-19 and the need to 
shift to distance learning last spring.  Trustees asked questions had discussion. The report was 
informational in nature and no action was taken by the board. 
 
Public Comment: Community Member Rocco Cappalla asked a question about the scope of the 
social-emotional health data presented in the district goals and metrics.  
 


8.5.2.2. Staff Report: SAIL Program Update 
Special Education Director Stacy O’Farrell and Program Specialist Staci Lacagnin provided an 
update on the SAIL program.. Students Achieving Independence and Life Success (SAIL) is a 
district operated Special Education program for students with behavioral and emotional 
challenges who require social emotional and behavioral intervention throughout the school 
day.  The SAIL program, throughout all grade spans, incorporates a consistently applied 
behavioral support system and explicitly taught social skills and social emotional learning to 
build student skills.  The highly dedicated and skilled staff maintain high academic and 
behavioral expectations for students and support them as they work through challenges while 
teaching prosocial and appropriate behaviors so that they can return to less restrictive 
placements and participate in general education with their same-age peers.  The SAIL Team has 
been focused on addressing the social-emotional needs of the students and have found 
opportunities to teach and connect with the students, particularly during distance learning. 
Trustees asked questions and made comments. The report was informational in nature and no 
action was taken by the board. 
 


8.1.10  Costanoa High School: Single Plan for Student Achievement 
Superintendent Munro introduced Principal Michelle McKinney, Assistant Principal Naima Leal, 
and Secondary Director of Curriculum Julia Hodges to answer questions from the board. 
Costanoa is designated as a Comprehensive Support and Improvement school due to their 
ratings on the 2019 California Dashboard. Costanoa’s Dashboard data shows a high suspension 
rate, low graduation rate, and low rates of College and Career Readiness. Due to the fact that 
Costanoa has been designated by the state as a school in need of Comprehensive Support and 
Improvement, Costanoa’s Single Plan for Student Achievement specifically addresses this 
concern and uses their steps for improving outcomes for Costanoa students. Trustees asked 
questions and made comments. 


 
Public Comment: Community Member Rocco Cappalla expressed his gratitude for the plan at 
Costanoa High School. Mr. Cappalla inquired about the issues of the students before reaching 
high school and inquired if those students could receive interventions an earlier age. 


   


39/175







MSP(Coonerty/Vestal) 7-0, Costanoa High School’s Single Plan for Student Achievement was 
approved. 


 
8.2.1.2. Consultant Services Agreement: Trauma Informed Professional Development Services 


Former Santa Cruz City School Principals Lysa Tabachnick and Kristin Pfotenhauer will provide 
Trauma Sensitive Practices training to teachers during Professional Learning Communities and 
will create three different Trauma Sensitive videos to train other staff. Trauma 
Sensitive/Informed Practice is an organizational structure and framework that involves 
understanding, recognizing, and responding to the effects of all types of trauma. Trauma 
Informed Practice also emphasizes physical, psychological and emotional safety for students 
and helps them rebuild a sense of control and empowerment. Trauma Informed Practice is an 
evidenced based practice to build a culture of community between adults and students, 
students to students, and adults to adults.  
 
MSP(Coonerty/Vestal) 6-1, the Consultant Services Agreement for Trauma Informed 
Professional Development Services was approved. 


 
8.5.3.1. Staff Report: Bond Budget Update 


Mark Bartos of Bartos Architecture and Assistant Superintendent Monreal presented an update 
on the Bond Measures A and B budgets. This report was informational in nature and no action 
was taken by the board.  


 


Public Comment: Soquel High School Site Bond Committee member Michelle Bradley addressed 
the board stating that as a committee member she has been unclear of her role on the 
committee. She requested that a clear charge be given to community and committee members 
and requested greater transparency for future projects.  


 
8.5.3.2. Staff Report: Preliminary CBEDS Report 2020-21 


Assistant Superintendent Monreal presented the District’s preliminary CBEDS Report. The 
California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS) is an annual data collection administered on 
the first Wednesday of October. This year CBEDS Information day was on October 7. The 
purpose of CBEDS is to collect demographic information on students, faculty and district 
employees. This year, District enrollment numbers are down due to both the COVID-19 
pandemic and the CZU Fire. The District has until December 2020 to validate these numbers. 
This report was information in nature and no action was taken by the board.  
 


8.5.3.3. New Business: Resolution 15-20-21 Establishing Measures T & U Oversight Committee and  
  Oversight Committee Bylaws 


On March 3, 2020, the voters of the District approved, by more than two-thirds voting in favor, 
Measures “U” (Elementary School District) and “T” (High School District) (together, the 
“Measures”). Each Measure approved the levy of an education parcel tax on parcels within the 
respective District.  Each Measure included a commitment that an independent citizen’s 
oversight committee would be established for the purpose of reviewing expenditure of parcel 
tax proceeds to ensure they are spent only for the specific uses enumerated in the Measures. 
The purpose of this item is to replace the existing citizen’s oversight committee with a new 


40/175







citizen’s oversight committee, and to adopt bylaws and operational guidelines for the new 
citizen’s oversight committee.  
 
Public Comment: Community Member Rocco Cappalla inquired if the 700 Form for the could 
also be required of Parcel Tax Oversight Committee members. 
 
Trustee Threet motioned to revisit the Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws on the 
November 4, 2020 Regular Board Meeting. Trustee Tracy-Proulx seconded the motion. 
 
MSP(Threet/Tracy-Proulx) 4-3, the motion to revisit the committee bylaws at the November 4, 
Regular Board meeting was approved. 
 


8.3.3.  Resolution 16-20-21: Emergency Provision to Forgo Bid Process and Geo H. Wilson Quote: 
District Wide Air Balance and Equipment Survey Report 


 Assistant Superintendent Monreal presented Resolution 16-20-21. Resolution 16-20-21 will 
allow the district to forgo the bid process on emergency needs and provisions. Due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, the District needs to assess ventilation and filter options, to safely prepare 
for the return to in-person instruction. This proposal consists of a survey and engineering 
evaluation of all existing heating and/or cooling equipment throughout the District to 
determine proper ventilation and filter options. 


 
Public Comment: Union President Casey Carlson Casey Carlson addressed the board about the 
importance of the ventilation system and requested that teachers be able to review the results 
of the test before returning to in-person learning.  
 
Public Comment: Community Member Rocco Cappalla expressed concerns about the projected 
timeline of the project.  
 
MSP(Tracy-Proulx/Owen) 7-0, Resolution 16-20-21: Emergency Provision to Forgo Bid Process 
and Geo H. Wilson Quote: District Wide Air Balance and Equipment Survey Report was 
approved. 


 
8.5.4.1. New Business: GSCFT 20-21 Sunshine Articles 


Assistant Superintendent Parks  presented the GSCFT’s Sunshine Articles. The Greater Santa 
Cruz Federation of Teachers’ K-12 Unit contract proposals are being submitted for sunshining. 
This in accordance with the Employees Relations Act for public notice of contract proposals 
before official negotiations may begin.  


 
Public Comment: Union President Casey Carlson stated that for the first time the Union has 
sunshined an article on digital learning. 


 
MSP(Coonerty/Threet) 7-0, the GCSFT Sunshine Articles were approved. 


 
8.5.5.1. New Business: Board Policy Grading 


Superintendent Munro presented  the Board Policy Grading for third reading. These 
recommendations reflect recent changes in education code and/or case law.  The policy has 


41/175







been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required customization for Santa Cruz City Schools 
has been included. As this policy is new to the district, there is no current policy for comparison 
review.  
 
Board President Ranii motioned to table the item and return to it at a future meeting. Trustee 
Threet seconded the motion. 
 
MSP (Ranii/Threet) 6-1, the motion to return to this item at a future meeting was approved.  
 


8.5.5.2. Board Policies: First and/or Final Reading for CSBA Revisions & Updates 
Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which 
uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code 
and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.  In addition to the regular board 
policy updates, staff has included a proposed revision to BP6141.2 Recognition of Religious 
Beliefs and Customs. This policy has been updated in order to ensure that all students and 
families are able to participate in school activities, extracurricular and co-curricular activities 
and special events. 
 
Trustee Vestal motioned to move the item to the next meeting. Trustee Tracy-Proulx seconded 
the motion. 
 
MSP(Vestal/Tracy-Proulx) 7-0, the motion to return to this item at a future meeting was 
approved. 


 
9. Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Ranii adjourned this 
Regular Meeting at 10:38 p.m. 
 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information  
1. The Study Session on October 28, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
2. The Regular Meeting on November 4, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
3. The Special Meeting on November 9, 2020, 5:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
4. The Special Meeting on November 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom 
5. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 18, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
6. The Special Meeting on December 2, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
7. The Regular Meeting on December 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
8. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
9. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
10. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
11. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
12. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
13. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
14. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


42/175







15. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
16. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
17. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
18. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
19. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
 
*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Cynthia Ranii, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


43/175







MINUTES OF THE STUDY SESSION 


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


OCTOBER 28, 2020 


 


 


Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   


None 


 


Convene Open Session 


Board President Ranii called this Study Session to order at 6:03 p.m. 


 


Attendance at Meeting 


Sheila Coonerty  John Owen  Cindy Ranii   Deb Tracy-Proulx  


Jeremy Shonick   Patricia Threet  Claudia Vestal  


 


Absent:  Student Board Representative Sophie Nigh 


  Student Board Representative Xhu Lopez Guzman 


 


Kris Munro, Superintendent 


Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 


Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


Members of the Audience 


 


Welcome and Format 


Board President Ranii welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Study Session of 


the Board of Education.  President Ranii explained what makes a Study Session different from a Regular 


Meeting and encouraged those in attendance to submit questions via writing. 


 


3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions, or Deletions & Announcements 


None 


 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 


None 


 


ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 


 


3.1.  Business Services Study Session 


Bond Budget 
Assistant Superintendent Monreal and Direct of Facilities Miller presented the bond budget 
overview. As part of the District’s facilities master planning process, an architectural firm was 
hired to support a needs assessment. A Steering Committee was formed with 25 stakeholders to 
prioritize identified needs and provided input into final recommendations for the Facilities 
Master Plan. One of the recommendations made was that funds were to be distributed by a 
snapshot of Average Daily Attendance at that time. Since then all Bond fund distribution decisions 


44/175







have used the percentages determined by the Steering Committee. District staff proposes to 
continue to follow that recommendation in allocating the interest earned on the bond funds that 
have been received as well as the site set aside dollars that were held for potential project cost 
increases and unforeseen circumstances. The Board discussed the possibility of expanding staff 
to meet communication needs for the Bond program and the District. Trustees asked questions 
and had discussion. 
 
Fund 17 – Basic and State Aid Reserve 
At the request of the Board Ad Hoc Budget Committee, staff has explored the possibility of 
establishing a Fund 17 Basic & State Aid Reserve.  Establishing Fund 17 is a way to create a 
savings account for the district to weather impending revenue loss due to declining enrollment 
and state budget reductions. The purpose of Fund 17 is for general fund resources for general 
operating purposes other than for capital outlay (Education Code Section 42840). Although this 
fund is authorized by statute, it functions effectively as an extension of the general fund. With 
the Coronavirus pandemic, Santa Cruz City Schools is continuing to stay abreast of state 
mandated interim reporting during the fiscal year. During the pandemic, revenues and 
expenses have fluctuated based on federal, state and local funds as well as expenditures 
associated with campuses changing to distant teaching. The creation of Fund 17 would allow 
the District to set aside resources to minimize reductions in future budgets. Trustees asked 
questions and had discussion. 
 
Facilities Rental COVID Options 
The Business Services team prepared a Civic Permits feel schedule that reflected District costs 
for additional COVID requirements.  Given the California Department of Public Health’s 
requirements for both youth sports and pools, there is a significant impact on third party 
renter’s costs, as there are a limited number of participants permissible at any time.  The 
District recommended the following potential adjustments to the schedule during the 
pandemic. 
 
1) Eliminate COVID cleaning fee  
2) Work with community renters to maximize time and value of their rental agreement 


 
Trustees asked questions and had discussion. 
 


 
 


4. Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Ranii adjourned this 


Regular Meeting at 7:47 p.m. 


 


 


Board Meeting Schedule Information  


1. The Regular Meeting on November 4, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


2. The Special Meeting on November 9, 2020, 5:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


3. The Special Meeting on November 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom 


4. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 18, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Special Meeting on December 2, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


6. The Regular Meeting on December 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


45/175







7. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


13. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


14. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


15. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


16. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


17. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


18. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


 


*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 


http://sccs.net/board_of_education 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


 


Kris Munro, Superintendent     Cynthia Ranii, President 


Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


46/175







MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
NOVEMBER 4, 2020 


 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Ranii called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Ranii called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty  John Owen  Cindy Ranii   Deb Tracy-Proulx  
Jeremy Shonick   Patricia Threet  Claudia Vestal  
 
Student Board Representative Sophie Nigh 
 
Absent:  Student Board Representative Xhu Lopez Guzman 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Ranii welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education.  President Ranii reviewed the meeting norms and meeting agreements and 
reminded all of the importance of maintaining the norms and agreements for effective governance. 
 
3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions, or Deletions & Announcements 
Superintendent Munro announced some minor changes to the agenda. Items 8.5.3.3. and 8.5.3.4. were 
renumbered due to a typo and requested that item 8.1.2.5. Resolution 17-20-21: Tax and Revenue 
Anticipation Notes and Related Documents be moved from consent to Open Session. Superintendent Munro 
also announced changes in upcoming board meeting dates. A Special Board meeting has been scheduled for 
Monday, November 16. The Regular Board meeting on Wednesday, December 16 has been rescheduled to 
Tuesday December 15 due to a statutory deadline. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 


 
 


47/175







SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro reported activities held all grade spans for College and Career Readiness week. The 
District continues to plan for Hybrid Instruction. District staff also continue to conduct home visits and provide 
supports for students and families during distance learning. Some supports include small group counseling for 
anxiety and depression, parent support networks, and the expansion of small cohorts. District leadership is 
focusing on virtual leadership strategies, and district staff continue to receive ongoing tech training, as well as 
information on the expansion of in-person services and health and safety protocols. The District is looking into 
options for in-person board meetings. Regular Q & A webinars are scheduled for families until winter break. 
The annual State of Our Schools newsletter was sent out at the end of October.   
 
Student’s Report 
Student Board Representative Sophie Nigh reported that student Leadership at Soquel High School are 
currently creating safety videos to share with peers around returning to in-person instruction. Soquel High 
School also hosted a drive-in event at the Boardwalk. 
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 


Board Members’ Reports 
Trustee Owen reported attended the County-wide virtual town hall, and felt it was very informative. He 
expressed his appreciation for the leadership and collaboration that went into this event. 
 
Trustee Vestal also reported she attended the community town hall. She commended the all the 
Superintendents who were present, and County Office of Education Superintendent Sabbah for his leadership. 
Trustee Vestal also reported on Cabrillo’s virtual college experience for 4th and 5th grade students, and her 
plan to attend the Wellness Committee meeting on Tuesday.  
 
Vice President Coonerty also attended the community town halland reported that it was organized and 
helpful. Bay View Elementary school hosted a Halloween parade where teachers and students both dressed 
up, and teacher’s rode in the parade on bicycles. Vice President Coonerty also reported on attending LGBTQ 
task force meeting. At the meeting the task force discussed posting safe space signs on campuses and 
throughout the community, and discussed what is meant by a safe space. 
 
Trustee Threet reported sitting in on a Principal’s Coffee at Soquel High School. She expressed her thanks to 
the staff and administration, and felt it was a very helpful and informative opportunity to get to know staff 
and keep families appraised of facilities preparation. 
 
Trustee Shonick did not have a report to share. 
 
Trustee Tracy-Proulx did not have a report to share. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Ranii expressed her gratitude to the team—students, staff, parents, fellow board members, 
and the community—as they continue to meet the many challenges presented this year and show dedication, 
thoughtfulness, and continually care about students. 


48/175







 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


None 
 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
 


Consent Agenda 
8.1.1.1. Single Plans for Student Achievement, 8.1.1.2. Gault Williams Annual Report, 8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, 
Bids, & Quotes, 8.1.2.2. Warrant Register, 8.1.2.3. Long Term Debt Annual Report, 8.1.2.4. First Quarter 
Investment Report, 8.1.2.5. Resolution 17-20-21: Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes and Related Documents, 
8.1.2.6. Notice of Completion: Bond Projects, 8.1.3.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated,  8.1.3.2. Personnel 
Actions – Classified, 8.1.4.1. Gifts, 8.2.4.1. Consultant Services Agreement: Governance Meeting Facilitation, 
8.3.1 Central Coast Construction Company: Contract: Santa Cruz High School Dust Collector Installation, 8.3.2. 
Dilbeck & Sons: Quote: Mission Hill Middle School Double Doors, 8.3.3. Fiber Optic Telecom International: 
Quote: Districtwide Electronic Key Cards, 8.3.4. Kier & Wright: Change Order 1: Westlake Elementary School 
Boundary Survey for Fencing, 8.3.5. Kier & Wright: Proposal: Mission Hill Middle School Land Survey, 8.3.6. 
Moore Twining: Proposal: Geotechnical Engineering Gault Elementary School New Classroom Building, 8.3.7. 
Palace Business Solutions: Proposal: Santa Cruz High School Office Furniture, 8.3.8. SC Systems Inc: Quote: 
Soquel High School Wire Cleanup, 8.3.9. Swinerton Builders: Change Order 4: Soquel High School 
Modernization Phase 2 
 
Vice President Coonerty motioned to approve the consent agenda except for item 8.1.2.5. Resolution 17-20-
21: Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes and Related Documents. Trustee Tracy-Proulx seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote:  
Coonerty – Yes Owen – Yes  Ranii –  Yes 
Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx –  Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Items 
Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 
Board Vice President Coonerty reported the following actions during closed session: 
1. Ms. Parks shared information with the Board on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, 


Resignations & Appointments. 
2. Ms. Parks did not have any information to share with Trustees regarding Public Employee 


Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaints. 
3. The board acknowledged and thanked Youth Resource Bank of Santa Cruz County for donating $300 in 


Ross gift cards to support families. 
4. The board acknowledged and thanked The Home Depot for their donation of $1,620.86 in product to 


support the safe expansion of in-person services on school sites. 
 


ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 
 
8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Reopening Plan Update 


Superintendent Munro presented updated information on local COVID health data and the 
county’s status on the State’s Blueprint for Economic Recovery. Small academic cohorts began 


49/175







on October 19th and currently 6 campuses have implemented small cohorts. The Reopening 
Advisory Committee discussed a proposal from sites to begin in-person hybrid schedules 
following the Martin Luther King Jr. Holiday. The intent of this start date is to account for 
individuals’ potential participation in gatherings over the holiday break and ensure the safest 
start possible for students and staff.  With small cohorts and preparation for Hybrid instruction, 
school facilities  are being prepared for social distancing. Preparations includes installation of 
plexiglas in offices and spaces for 1:1 services, social distancing markers throughout campuses, 
and reconfiguration of classrooms. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. This report 
was informational in nature and no action was taken by the Board at this time.  


 
Public Comment: High School parent Melissa Dennis addressed the Board to encourage 
reopening of schools beginning in January. As a teacher and parent, she voiced her support and 
belief that Hybrid learning can be done safely. 


 
Public Comment: Union President Casey Carlson spoke in favor of the proposed plan to begin 
Hybrid instruction no sooner than January 19. 


 
Public Comment: Elementary School parent Sandrine LaGrande addressed the Board to voice 
her support for the AM/PM instructional schedule for elementary schools. Ms. LaGrande stated 
the AM/PM model would allow for more instructional time and more consistency in learning.  


 
Public Comment: High school teacher Guy French addressed the board to voice his support for 
the gradual start of Hybrid instruction in January.  


 
8.5.1.2. New Business: Board Policy Grading 
 Superintendent Munro presented the on the Board Policy Grading for fourth reading. These 


recommendations reflect recent changes in education code and/or case law.  The policy has 
been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required customization for Santa Cruz City Schools 
has been included. As this policy is new to the district, there is no current policy for comparison 
review. 


 
 MSP(Coonerty/Vestal) 7-0, the Board Policy on grading was approved. 


 
8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Update on School Resource Officer Programs 


Assistant Superintendent Coito introduced Director of Student Services Gail Atlansky to present 
an overview of the School Resource Officer programs at schools. Santa Cruz City Schools 
contracts with both the Santa Cruz Police Department and the Santa Cruz County Sheriff’s 
Office to provide the School Resource Officer program. School Resource Officers are provided 
specific training focused on the establishment of strong relationships with students, staff and 
site administration. The essential purpose of the School Resource Officer program is to ensure 
the safety of students and staff, establish and maintain positive relationships with the entire 
school community, and provide crisis and emergency training. The School Resource Officer does 
not become involved in administrative behavioral matters with students. Partnership with 
School Resource Officers continues to be an important part of District efforts to keep students, 
staff and campuses safe. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. This report was 
informational in nature and no action was taken by the Board.  


50/175







 
Public Comment: Community Member Rocco Cappalla addressed the Board to share his 
experience with District School Resource Officer Kendall. He also stated he would like to know 
more details about the type of training School Resources Officers received.  


 
Public Comment: High School Teacher Elijah Gregory addressed the Board, stating he has 
worked with Officer Kendall several times, specifically with students in the SAIL program at 
Harbor High. His experiences working with Officer Kendall were positive and believes him to be 
an asset to the school and a support to both teachers and students. 


 
8.5.2.2. New Business: Soquel High School and Branciforte Small Schools: Northwest Evaluation 


Association Measures of Academic Progress Contract 
 Assistant Superintendent Coito introduced Director of Curriculum Hodges to present an 


overview of the contract with Northwest Evaluation Association. For the past three school 
years, Santa Cruz City Schools has used the Northwest Evaluation Association’s Measure of 
Academic Progress nationally normed academic growth assessments for both Math and 
Reading. Due to distance learning, the District put a pause on Measure of Academic Progress 
testing for the 2020-21 school year. However, Soquel High math teachers would like to pilot 
administering Measure of Academic Progress in distance learning as well as in hybrid learning. 
Additionally, all of the Branciforte Small Schools (Costanoa, Ark Independent High School, 
Alternative Family Education, and Monarch Elementary) would like to implement Measure of 
Academic Progress in both Reading and Math this school year. Monitoring the progress of 
students in these alternative programs will help to give teachers, parents, and students’ 
valuable feedback regarding their growth and progress in both Reading and Math. Trustees 
asked questions and had discussion. 


 
MSP(Owen/Coonerty) 7-0, the contract with Northwest Evaluation Association Measure of 
Academic Progress was approved.  


 
8.5.3.1. New Business: Resolution 15-20-21 Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws  


On March 3, 2020, the voters of the District approved, by more than two-thirds voting in favor, 
Measures “U” (Elementary School District) and “T” (High School District) (together, the 
“Measures”). Each Measure approved the levy of an education parcel tax on parcels within the 
respective District.  Each Measure included a commitment that an independent citizen’s 
oversight committee would be established for the purpose of reviewing expenditure of parcel 
tax proceeds to ensure they are spent only for the specific uses enumerated in the Measures. 
The purpose of this item is to replace the existing citizen’s oversight committee with a new 
citizen’s oversight committee, and to adopt bylaws and operational guidelines for the new 
citizen’s oversight committee. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. 
 
MSP(Coonerty/Tracy-Proulx) 6-1, Resolution 15-20-21 Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Bylaws 
was approved.  


 
 
8.5.3.2. New Business: Fieldturf Proposal: Mission Hill Middle School Athletic Field Replacement 


51/175







Assistant Superintendent Monreal and Director of Facilities Miller presented the proposal from 
Fieldturf for the new athletic field at Mission Hill Middle School. The proposal consists of 
purchase and installation of a new artificial field which includes all baseball, softball and soccer 
markings, and a synthetic track resurfacing. This will replace the existing field that has reached 
the end of its useful life and has areas that no longer pass impact tests. Trustees asked 
questions and had discussion. 
 
MSP(Tracy-Proulx/Coonerty) 7-0, the Fieldturf proposal for Mission Hill Middle School Athletic 
Field Replacement was approved.  


 
8.5.3.3. New Business: J-13A Attendance Waiver 


In August of this year, wildfires in the Santa Cruz Mountains forced hundreds of District families 
and staff members to evacuate their homes. On August 25, 2020 Santa Cruz County declared a 
state of emergency. In response to the evacuations, Santa Cruz City Schools cancelled classes 
from August 21 through August 28. Pursuant to Education Code 41422, school districts may 
apply for a waiver in the event of an emergency that forces school closure.  The waiver allows 
the District to receive the same apportionment despite missed instructional days.  


 
  MSP(Tracy-Proulx/Vestal) 7-0, the J-13A Attendance Waiver application was approved. 
 
8.1.2.5. Resolution 17-20-21 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes and Related Documents 


Assistant Superintendent Monreal presented Resolution 17-20-21. By passing the resolution 
before the Board, the District will have the opportunity to participate in the California School 
Cash Reserve Program sponsored by California School Boards Association Finance Corporation.  
The Cash Reserve Program pools the issuance of tax and revenue anticipation notes from 
school districts, community college districts, and county offices of education from across the 
state. This is a precautionary measure to help the District weather funding  deferrals from the 
state anticipated this year. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. 
 
MSP(Owen/Coonerty) 7-0, Resolution 17-20-21 Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes and 
Related Documents was approved 


 
8.5.4.1. New Business: SCCS District 2020-21 Sunshine Articles to GSCFT 


Assistant Superintendent Parks presented the contract proposals that are being submitted to 
the Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teacher’s K-12 Unit for sunshining. This is done in 
accordance with the Employees Relations Act. 


 
  MSP(Coonerty/Vestal) 7-0, the SCCS District 2020-21 Sunshine Articles to GSCFT was approved. 


 
8.5.5.1. New Business: Resolution 19-20-21 In Defense of Democracy 


Superintendent Munro presented this resolution, stating it was proposed by the GSCFT 
President, Casey Carlson in collaboration with history and government teachers within the 
District and then presented to the Resolutions Sub-Committee. Santa Cruz City Schools 
understands the United States has a proud and long history of democracy with free and fair 
elections, and as such, public educators and school board trustees swear an oath upon being 


52/175







hired as public servants to uphold the United States Constitution.  GSCFT President Casey 
Carlson spoke to the Resolution.  Trustees asked questions and had discussion. 
 
MSP(Vestal/Tracy-Proulx) 5-2, Resolution 19-20-21 In Defense of Democracy was approved. 
 


8.5.5.2. Board Policies: Second and/or Final Reading for CSBA Revisions & Updates 
Policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating process, which 
uses CSBA recommendations for review and change approximately six times per year in 
participating districts.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code 
and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.  In addition to the regular board 
policy updates, staff has included a proposed revision to BP6141.2 Recognition of Religious 
Beliefs and Customs. This policy has been updated in order to ensure that all students and 
families are able to participate in school activities, extracurricular and co-curricular activities 
and special events. Trustees asked questions and had discussion. 
 
MSP(Owen/Coonerty) 7-0, the CSBA Board Policy Revisions and Updates were approved. 


 
9. Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Ranii adjourned this 
Regular Meeting at 9:00 p.m. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information  
1. The Special Meeting on November 9, 2020, 5:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
2. The Special Meeting on November 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom 
3. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 18, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
4. The Special Meeting on December 2, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
5. The Regular Meeting on December 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
6. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
7. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
8. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
9. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
10. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
11. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
12. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
13. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
14. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
15. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
16. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
17. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 
 
*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 


53/175







Kris Munro, Superintendent     Cynthia Ranii, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


54/175







MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


NOVEMBER 9, 2020 


 


Convene Closed Session 


Board President Ranii called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  


 


Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   


None 


 


Closed Session Items 


Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 


Board Vice President Coonerty reported the following actions during closed session: 


Ms. Parks shared information with the Board and the Board provided direction to the Superintendent on 


Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, Resignations & Appointments. 


 


 


Board Meeting Schedule Information  


1. The Special Meeting on November 9, 2020, 5:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


2. The Special Meeting on November 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom 


3. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on November 18, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Special Meeting on December 2, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Regular Meeting on December 16, 2020, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


6. The Regular Meeting on January 13, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on January 27, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Regular Meeting on February 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on February 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Regular Meeting on March 10, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Regular Meeting on March 24, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Regular Meeting on April 14, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


13. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on April 28, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


14. The Regular Meeting on May 5, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


15. The Regular Meeting/Study Session on May 19, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


16. The Regular Meeting on June 2, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


17. The Regular Meeting on June 16, 2021, 6:30 p.m., will be held remotely via Zoom. 


 


*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 


http://sccs.net/board_of_education 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


 


Kris Munro, Superintendent     Cynthia Ranii, President 


Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


55/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: North Bay Ford Purchase  
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase of North Bay Ford F250 Super Cab Utility Truck. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This purchase will replace a current grounds vehicle, a Ford F-550 that is 20 years old with over 
100,000 miles.  This vehicle has become unreliable and the ongoing cost of repairs is far 
exceeding the cost of a new vehicle. This vehicle is used by the grounds team for towing our 
large backhoe from site to site. The price also includes a Royal Body with opening top lids utility 
bed. This is a 98” long utility service body that is 40” high with a vertical door arrangement, 
open-top compartments, and an over-cab rack. There is also a stainless-steel tailgate guard and 
a heavy-duty Class lll recessed rear bumper. 
 
The price option is better than the state “CMAS” purchase negotiated in Sacramento. Staff was 
able to locate the vehicle locally.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$50,271.40, Routine Restricted Maintenance Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


56/175







57/175







58/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Amayas Locating Services, LLC Proposal 
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the proposal from Amayas Locating Service, LLC for utility location services for the 
Emergency Generator Project at Harbor High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As part of the Emergency Generator project that was approved by the Board on August 26, 
2020, there is a need to determine underground utility locations prior to the geotechnical 
investigation drilling of soil sample holes. This is part of the required geo hazard and soils report 
for Division of the State Architect. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$3,000.00, Deferred Maintenance Fund (14) (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


59/175







60/175







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Annual Renewal of Services Agreement: Super Co-Op  
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approve the renewal of Services with Super Co-Op—a California USDA (United State 
Department of Agriculture) Food Cooperative—for 2021-2022 USDA commodity purchasing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The USDA Foods Program provides approximately 20% of the food served in the National 
School Lunch Program. The program began in the early 1930’s as an outgrowth of federal 
agriculture policies designed to shore up farm prices and help American farmers suffering from 
the economic upheaval of the Great Depression.  In current times, the program functions to 
support domestic nutrition programs and American agricultural producers through purchases of 
domestic agricultural products for use in schools and institutions. 
 
The processing of USDA Foods allows recipient agencies such as school districts to contract with 
commercial food processors, converting raw bulk USDA Foods into more convenient, ready-to-
use end products.  USDA began the processing program in 1958 to permit state distributing 
agencies and eligible recipient agencies to maximize the use of USDA Foods.  
 
The Super Co-Op was created to combine School Districts across California to work directly with 
commercial food processors and vendors to improve the variety, availability, cost and 
accountability of the ready to use end products. As the largest Cooperative in the state of 
California, the District’s department of Food Services work closely with California Department 
of food and Agriculture (CDFA) and the USDA. 
 
San Mateo-Foster City School District is the Lead Agency of the Super Co-Op and hereby given 
authority to contract for USDA Foods and related services on behalf of Santa Cruz City Schools, 
as one of the 237 member districts. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,500   Food Services - Fund 13 (Restricted)  
 
 
 
 


61/175







                            


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3. 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 Prepared by Amy Hedrick-Farr, Director, Food & Nutrition Services 


62/175







63/175







64/175







65/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Geo. H. Wilson: Mission Hill Middle School Ventilation Repairs 
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify the Geo. H. Wilson Ventilation Repairs at Mission Hill Middle School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary repairs found at Mission Hill Middle School during the 
recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$45,197.00  Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


66/175







 


 
 
 
November 13, 2020 
 
 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  trevormiller@sccs.net 
 
RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Mission Hill Middle School 
 Job 60510052 – EWP 499.01 Rev. 1 – Repairs Found During Ventilation Survey 
 
Dear Trevor: 
 
We have developed this Extra Work Proposal to address the necessary repairs found during our 
recent ventilation survey at Mission Hill Middle School.  Chris Baldwin requested that we delete 
the boiler pump from this EWP after it was submitted.  We have created a separate bid. 
 
Please consider the following scope of work, schedule and quotation. 
 
Scope of Work:  
 


1. Replace leaking heating actuator at unit #MH-32-UV-6 serving Room 14. 
2. Replace bad fan motor at unit #MH-31-UV-12 serving Room 13. 
3. Troubleshoot and resolve why return air damper does not close 100% at unit MH-50-UV-


4 serving Room 9 
4. Replace thermostat and resolve controls in unit #MH-29-UV-3 serving Room 10. 
5. Work in conjunction with Trane and the District to resolve controls communication with 


the following (8) units: 


• MH-27-UV-1 Room 12 


• MH-33-UV-1 Music Room 


• MH-50-UV-11 Room 3 


• MH-57-UV-19 Computer Room 


• MH-58-UV-12 Room 25 


• MH-39-RTU-6 Woodshop 


• MH-46-UV-7 Counselor’s Office 


• MH-54-UV-16 Room 24 
6. Repair or replace heating valve in unit MH-48-UV-10 serving Room 2. 
7. Determine why computer room unit will not take 100% minimum damper position or 


operate in cooling MB-56-UV-18 serving Room 21. 
8. Replace damper actuator for unit MH-49-UV-14 serving Room 23. 


67/175







SCCS Vent. Survey – Mission Hill Vent. Survey Repairs  60510052, 499.01 Rev. 1 
November 13, 2020 
 
 


2 


 


9. Replace heating actuator, Belimo LR24-3 in unit MH-59-UV-20 serving Room 16 
10. Work with Trane and District to determine why economizer will open return damper 


100% during morning warmup and outside air goes to 0%.  After temperature rise, then 
outside air damper goes to 100%.  This is a general note that can be observed on unit 
MH-53-UV-15 serving Room 24 and MH-24-RTU-3 serving the Gym. 


11. Replace bad heating valve, Belimo B213B serving MH-8-HV-13 serving Library 
12. Check operation of heating valve for unit MH-04-HV-11 serving the Library after 


secondary pump at boiler is replaced. (See #16) 
13. Replace outside air damper that has (1) broken blade on MH-38-RTU-7 serving the 


wood and metal shops (morning warm up drives outside air dampers shut) 
14. Replace leaking hot water valve, Belimo L1224 CV-19, in unit MH-44-HV-4 serving the 


office. 
15. Replace bad Belimo LR24US B311BT 3-way valve in unit MH-41-HV-1 serving the Boys 


Locker Room. 
16. Replace secondary loop pump in boiler room 


 
Schedule: 
 


Please allow 30 days for procurement of materials and equipment.  We anticipate that this 
work will require up to 60 days to complete. 


 
Quotation: 
 


We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $45,197 
   


 Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 
 
 This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.  If you have any questions 
please call. 
  
Sincerely,    


 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 
 


 
Cc: Tricia Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 


Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Chris Baldwin  cbaldwin@sccs.net 
 


TEW/amb 
 


68/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Geo. H. Wilson: Santa Cruz High School Ventilation Repairs  
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify the Geo. H. Wilson Ventilation Repairs at Santa Cruz High School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary repairs found at Santa Cruz High School during the 
recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$21,812.00  Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


69/175







 


 
 
 
November 11, 2020 
 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  trevormiller@sccs.net 
 
RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Santa Cruz High School 
 Job 60510045 – EWP 499.02 – Repairs Found During Ventilation Survey 
 
Dear Trevor: 
 
We have developed this Extra Work Proposal to address the necessary repairs found 
during our recent ventilation survey at Santa Cruz High School.  
 
Please consider the following scope of work, schedule and quotation. 
 
Scope of Work:  
 


1. Replace motor and wheel on EF-E1 at Trident Building 
2. Work with District to resolve issues with controls impacting unit serving first floor 


core and second floor Auditorium 
3. Resolve ‘frozen’ outside air damper serving Music Building 
4. Work with District to resolve issues with controls impacting Cafeteria HVAC 


equipment 
5. Resolve ‘obstructed’ outside air louver serving Science Building 
6. Replace control transformer on (1) of Reznor units above the Prep Corridor of 


Science Building 
7. Resolve outside air louvers at Math Building 
8. Resolve outside air issues at Industrial Arts 
9. Resolve outside air issues at Main Gym 


 
Schedule: 
 


Issues with controls are an unknown regarding a schedule.  The balance of the 
repairs can be addressed within 30 days. 


 


70/175







SCCS Vent. Survey – SCHS Vent. Survey Repairs Job 60510045, 499.02 
November 11, 2020 
 
 


2 


 


Quotation: 
 


We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $21,812 
   


 Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 
 
 This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.  If you have any 
questions please call. 
  
Sincerely,    


 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 


      
 
Cc: Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Trisha Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 
        
TEW/amb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


71/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Geo. H. Wilson: Gault Elementary School Ventilation Repairs  
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify the Geo. H. Wilson Ventilation Repairs at Gault Elementary School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary repairs found at Gault Elementary School during the 
recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$15,352.00  Elementary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


72/175







 


 
 
November 11, 2020 
 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  trevormiller@sccs.net 
 
RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Gault Elementary 
 Job 60510049 – EWP 499.01 – Repairs Found During Ventilation Survey 
 
Dear Trevor: 
 
We have developed this Extra Work Proposal to address the necessary repairs found 
during our recent ventilation survey at Gault Elementary School.  
 
Please consider the following scope of work, schedule and quotation. 
 
Scope of Work:  
 


1. Work with District representatives to resolve controls issues in Rooms 1 and 9. 
2. Troubleshoot and resolve why cooling has been disabled on unit serving R-14 
3. Troubleshoot and resolve why unit serving R-18 is not working 
4. Verify operation of (14) Bard outside air dampers consisting of (3) different types 


 
Schedule: 
 


At this point, it is unknown how long it will take us working with Trane and the 
District to resolve the controls for Rooms 1 and 9.  Please allow for 30 days to 
procure parts and resolve the issues with R-14 and R-18, in addition to fine tuning 
the outside air dampers for the Bard units. 


 
Quotation: 
 


We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $15,352 
   


 Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 
 
 This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 


73/175







SCCS Vent. Survey – Gault Vent. Survey Repairs Job 60510049, 499.01 
November 11, 2020 
 
 


2 


 


Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service. If you have any 
questions please call. 
  
Sincerely,    


 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems    


 
Cc: Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Trisha Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 
        
TEW/amb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


74/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Geo. H. Wilson: Westlake Elementary School Ventilation Repairs 
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify Geo. H. Wilson Ventilation Repairs at Westlake Elementary School 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal is to address the necessary repairs found at Westlake Elementary School during 
the recent ventilation survey that was approved at the November 4th Board meeting.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$17,653.00  Elementary Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


75/175







 


 
 
 
 
November 11, 2020 
 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
 
Attn: Trevor Miller  trevormiller@sccs.net 
 
RE: SCCS Ventilation Survey – Westlake Elementary 
 Job 60510050 – EWP 499.01 – Repairs Found During Ventilation Survey 
 
Dear Trevor: 
 
We have developed this Extra Work Proposal to address the necessary repairs found 
during our recent ventilation survey at Westlake Elementary School.  
 
Please consider the following scope of work, schedule and quotation. 
 
Scope of Work:  
 


1. Check operation of (2) outside air dampers that required manual opening during 
survey: 


• UV-14 serving Room 2 


• UV-20 serving Room 8 
2. Verify operation of heating valves serving rooms 19 and 20. 
3. Investigate and resolve operation of outside air damper for air handler WL-47 – 


AH-25 serving the Multipurpose Room. 
4. Investigate and repair rooftop packaged unit serving the library. 
5. Investigate and repair air handler serving the administration area; fortify or 


replace actuator so that the outside air damper can operate. 
 


Schedule: 
 


Please allow for 30 days to procure parts and completion of repairs. 
 
 
 


76/175







SCCS Vent. Survey – Westlake Vent. Survey Repairs Job 60510050, 499.01 
November 11, 2020 
 
 


2 


 


Quotation: 
 


We propose to install this work, as outlined above, for the following: $17,653 
   


 Payments will be due upon receipt of Invoice. 
 
 This quotation will be valid for 30 days from the date of this letter. 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to be of continued service.   If you have any 
questions please call. 
  
Sincerely,    


 
Thomas E. Wilson 
Assistant Branch Manager 
Geo. H. Wilson Mechanical Contractors 
A subsidiary of ACCO Engineered Systems 


      
 
Cc: Chris Garcia  cgarcia@sccs.net 
 Trisha Hayes  thayes@sccs.net 
        
TEW/amb 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED 
 
 
_____________________________________     _____________________________ 
Signature              Date 
 
_____________________________________ 
Printed Name 


77/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Development Group Inc. Change Order #3 for Branciforte Middle 
School Network Cabling 


     
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Development Group Inc. change order #3 for Branciforte Middle School network 
cabling. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of labor and material costs to install cabling for wireless access 
points at Branciforte Middle School for small cohorts outdoor learning. The previously 
approved contract amount was $248,050.07 and the new total contract, including this change 
order, will be $249,925.07. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #3     $1,875.00, (0.75% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


78/175







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 
 


CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 


 CHANGE ORDER NO.: 


3 
 


CHANGE ORDER 
 


Project: Branciforte Middle School Network Cabling 
Bid No.:  


  


 
The following parties agree to the terms of this Change Order: 
Owner:  


Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission St., Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, Ca 95060 
 
 


Contractor: 
 


 
Development Group, Inc. 
6407 Lockhead Drive 
Redding, CA 96002 


 
Reference Description Cost Days Ext. 


PCO # CR-
1018-004 


Labor and materials cost to install cabling for wireless access 
points at Branciforte Middle School   
 


$ 1,875.00 0 


 
 
 


 
Original Contract Amount: 
 
Amount of Previously Approved 
Change Order(s): 
 
Amount of this Change Order: 
 
Contract Amount:  


 
$ 229,767.64 
 
  
$ 18,282.43 
 
$ 1,875.00 
 
$ 249,925.07 


 
The undersigned Contractor approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, and the Cost, if any, specified for each item and as to 
the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire work as stated therein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials 
and services and perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration stated therein. 
 
This change order is subject to approval by the governing board of this district and must be signed by the District.   
 
The compensation and time, if any, granted herein represent a full accord and satisfaction for any and all time and cost impacts of 
the items herein, and Contractor waives any and all further compensation or time extension based on the items herein.  The value of 
the extra work or changes expressly includes any and all of the Contractors costs and expenses, both direct and indirect, resulting 
from additional time required on the project or resulting from delay to the project.  Any costs, expenses, damages or time extensions 
not included are deemed waived.   
 
 
 
Signatures: 
 
District:      Contractor: 
 
 
       ________           ________ 
[Name]         Date  [Name]           Date 
 
Architect:      Project Inspector: 
 


Gregory T. Drake 11/09/202


79/175







 


CR-1018-003 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


☐


☐


Gregory T. Drake 11/09/202


80/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Development Group Inc. Change Order #3 for Gault Elementary 
School Data Installation  


     
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Development Group Inc. change order #3 for Gault Elementary School data 
installation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of labor and material costs to install cabling for wireless access 
points at Gault Elementary School for small cohort outdoor learning. The previously approved 
contract amount was $143,076.07 and the new total contract, including this change order, will 
be $145,748.57. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #3     $2,672.50, (1.86% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


81/175







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 
 


CHANGE ORDER FORM 
 
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission Street, Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 


 CHANGE ORDER NO.: 


3 
 


CHANGE ORDER 
 


Project: Gault Elementary School Data Installation 
Bid No.:  


  


 
The following parties agree to the terms of this Change Order: 
Owner:  


Santa Cruz City Schools 
133 Mission St., Suite 100 
Santa Cruz, Ca 95060 
 
 


Contractor: 
 


 
Development Group, Inc. 
6407 Lockhead Drive 
Redding, CA 96002 


 
Reference Description Cost Days Ext. 


PCO # CR-
1019-006 


labor and material costs to install cabling for wireless access points at Gault 
Elementary School 


$2,672.50 
  


0 


 
 
 


 
Original Contract Amount: 
 
Amount of Previously Approved 
Change Order(s): 
 
Amount of this Change Order: 
 
Contract Amount:  


 
$ 128,721.98 
 
  
$ 14,354.09  
 
$2,672.50 
 
$ 145,748.57 


 
The undersigned Contractor approves the foregoing as to the changes, if any, and the Cost, if any, specified for each item and as to 
the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire work as stated therein, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials 
and services and perform all work necessary to complete any additional work specified for the consideration stated therein. 
 
This change order is subject to approval by the governing board of this district and must be signed by the District.   
 
The compensation and time, if any, granted herein represent a full accord and satisfaction for any and all time and cost impacts of 
the items herein, and Contractor waives any and all further compensation or time extension based on the items herein.  The value of 
the extra work or changes expressly includes any and all of the Contractors costs and expenses, both direct and indirect, resulting 
from additional time required on the project or resulting from delay to the project.  Any costs, expenses, damages or time extensions 
not included are deemed waived.   
 
 
 
Signatures: 
 
District:      Contractor: 
 
 
       ________           ________ 
[Name]         Date  [Name]           Date 
 
Architect:      Project Inspector: 
 
 


Gregory T. Drake 11/09/202


82/175







 


CR-1019-006 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


☐


☐


Gregory T. Drake 11/09/202


83/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Development Group Inc. Proposal for Westlake Elementary School 
Network Cabling 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Development Group Inc. proposal for Westlake Elementary School network 
cabling. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of data network cabling services and electric services on a time and 
materials basis for Westlake Elementary School. Based on an engineering estimate, this work is 
expected not to exceed 20 weeks at the approved time and materials rate. This is the same 
network project that has been done at each school site.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$682,718.75, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 5.08% of the overall site budget 
$13,439,288.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Westlake Elementary School  
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


84/175







ds....-....l DEVELOPMENT
GROUP, INC.


Santa Cruz City Schools 


STATEMENT OF WORK 


Westlake Elementary School


PROPOSAL VERSION 1.0 


11/03/2020


85/175







Table of Contents 


1 Introduction ............................................................................................................... 1 


1.1 Project Work Summary ....................................................................................... 1 


1.2 Project Milestones and Payment Schedule ........................................................ 1 


1.3 Company Project Stakeholders .......................................................................... 2 


1.4 Customer Project Stakeholders .......................................................................... 2 


1.5 Company Project Escalation Contacts ............................................................... 3 


1.6 Customer Project Escalation Contacts ............................................................... 3 


1.7 Installation Site Address(es) ............................................................................... 3 


1.8 Summary of Assumptions ................................................................................... 4 


2 Company Responsibilities ......................................................................................... 5 


2.1 Company provided administration and documentation: ...................................... 5 


3 Santa Cruz City Schools Responsibilities ................................................................ 6 


3.1 General ............................................................................................................... 6 


3.2 Specific ............................................................................................................... 6 


4 Signature Forms ........................................................................................................ 8 


4.1 Statement of Work Agreement ........................................................................... 8 


4.2 Change Request Form ....................................................................................... 8 


4.3 Work Acceptance Certification ............................................................................ 8 


Westlake Elementary School Page i of i 


86/175







1 Introduction 


This Statement of Work (SOW), prepared for Santa Cruz City Schools (the Customer), 
provides work specifics to be performed by Development Group, Inc. (the Company) for a 
time and materials service engagement. 


1.1 Project Work Summary 


The Company proposes to provide data network cabling services and electrical 
services on a time, expenses and materials basis for Westlake Elementary 
School. The work generally consists of, but is not limited to, pathway exploration, 
rodding pathways, pulling copper cables and fiber optic cables, installing surface 
mounted raceways, testing copper and fiber, terminating copper and fiber, 
installing equipment cabinets at in the MDF/ IDFs and labeling cable and patch 
panels, providing as-built drawings and cable testing reports. Although not a fixed 
bid price, the company provides an engineering estimate to both cost and duration 
as 
$682,718.75 across 14 to 20 weeks.


1.2 Project Milestones and Payment Schedule 


1.2.1 


1.2.2 


Each week the Customer and the Company will hold a project status meeting. 
During this meeting the Company will provide a summary of work which was 
completed during the prior calendar week and a proposed work plan for the 
next calendar week. Customer will provide feedback and direction to inform 
the proposed work plan. 


Invoices for time and materials will be submitted to the Customer weekly 
based on actual time worked and actual materials provided/consumed in the 
course of the work. Expenses will be charged at cost plus twenty five percent 
(25% ). Materials will be charged at cost plus twenty five percent (25%) plus 
actual expenses (e.g. shipping, handling, etc.). Labor rates will be charged 
according to the following schedule. If the work performed requires trade 
classifications not included in this SoW, the Company will submit a notice of 
the type of work required and the hourly rate of such labor prior to beginning 
any work. All trades work will be paid at the appropriate prevailing wage per 
California labor code. 


92.50 138.75 185.00 


165.63 248.45 331.26 


150.00 202.5 300.00 


Telecommunication
Technician


Inside Wireman
Project Manager 


Project Coordinator 100.00 135.00 200.00 


Westlake Elementary School Page 1 of 8 


87/175







1.3 Company Project Stakeholders 


Natalie Slocum 


Martin Turner


Account Manager 


Project Manager - 
Construction Services 


1.4 Customer Project Stakeholders 


Trevor Miller 


Curtis Gomez 


Director, Facilities 
Services 


Director, Information 
Technology 


Westlake Elementary School


nslocum@development-group.net 


Office: 530-646-3673 


mturner@development-group.net 


Cell: 530-355-7261


trevorm iller@sccs.net 
Office: 831-429-3904 
cgomez@sccs.net 


Office: 831-429-3410 


Page 2 of 8 


88/175







', 


1.5 Company Project Escalation Contacts 


11a.�r.11ill:.I lrffi]L;i!l§� ••-tl■1r-. 1..iil 11■11IJ■■1r,.;1■ll1•1• I 


Dan Lockwood President 
dlockwood@development-group.net 


Tony Jenkins 


Daniel Jenkins 


Director, Operations 


Practice Manager - 
Construction Services 


Office: 530-510-4303 


tjenkins@.developm ent-grou p. net 


Office: 530-510-4308 


djenkins@.development-group.net 


Office: 530-646-3566 


1.6 Customer Project Escalation Contacts 


Trevor Miller 


Curtis Gomez 


Director, Facilities 
Services 


Director, Information 
Technology 


1. 7 Installation Site Address(es)


Westlake
Elementary School 
1000 High St, Santa
Cruz, CA 95060


Westlake Elementary School


trevorm iller@sccs.net 
Office: 831-429-3904 
cgomez@sccs.net 


Office: 831-429-341 O 


Page 3 of 8 


89/175







1.8 Summary of Assumptions 


1.8.1 General Assumptions 


A. General assumptions used to prepare this SOW:


1. All changes to this Statement of Work, whether requested by the


Company or the Customer, will be via the attached Change Request


form.


2. The drawings, created by the company and approved by the district,


will provide direction through this engagement for the company and its


subcontractor to execute the work.


Westlake Elementary School Page 4 of 8 


90/175







2 Company Responsibilities 


2.1 Company provided administration and documentation 


2.1.1 Provide detailed as-built drawings and documentation that describe the 


system installation. 


2.1.2 Company will clear all work areas of shipping cartons, packaging and debris 


created by the Company at the conclusion of each work day. 


2.1.3 Company will maintain a master task list and schedule of all project 


milestones and work items. Customer understands and agrees that the master 


task list and schedule maintained by the Company will be the definitive 


document set by which the project will be managed. 


2.1.4 Company will conduct regular project status meetings with appropriate project 


stakeholders, and other interested third parties, weekly or as otherwise agreed 


to by both parties. The Company will record meeting minutes, maintain an 


issues list, and list action items for subsequent meetings. Meeting minutes 


and supporting documentation will be distributed to attendees, project 


stakeholders and third-parties at the conclusion of each. 


Westlake Elementary School Page 5 of 8 


91/175







3 Customer Responsibilities 


3.1 General 


3.1.1 Upon the presentation of a Work Acceptance Certification document, the 


Customer will either agree to the completion of the work described therein or 


provide a detailed, written account of the work items in dispute. If neither the 


Work Acceptance Certification document nor a valid dispute are returned to 


the Company within five (5) business days, the work items described in the 


Work Acceptance Certification document shall be deemed to have been 


accepted by the Customer. 


3.2 Specific 


3.2.1 Provide a Customer representative that will be the primary point of contact for 


this project. At a minimum, this person must be available to meet weekly with 


all project stakeholders. The Customer representative must have 


authorization to incur charges and make decisions that will affect the 


successful implementation of the project, and must be able to provide or 


arrange physical access to all areas of the facility(ies) which will receive 


installed equipment as part of this project. 


3.2.2 Provide accurate scale drawings and/or "blueprints" of the Customer's 


facility(ies) as may be required for the execution of this Statement of Work. 


3.2.3 Provide an on-site authorized Customer representative at all times when 


Company staff is engaged in work at a Customer's facility and/or co-located 


datacenter space. The on-site Customer representative must be able to 


provide physical access to all areas of the facility(ies) which will receive 


installed equipment as part of this project including disabling any burglar alarm 


system(s) and/or unlocking any doors. Physical access restrictions 


dramatically reduce work efficiency and may result in additional costs being 


assessed to the Customer. 


3.2.4 Participate in a per-site and/or per IDF/MDF quality acceptance process with 


the Company's Project Manager or Practice Manager at the conclusion of the 


project, or in the case of a multi-phase project, at the conclusion of each 


phase. 


3.2.5 Schedule, coordinate, and notify end users of any planned network or facility 


service interruptions required during the execution of this Statement of Work. 


3.2.6 Notify the Company of any defects with the installation services described 


herein within thirty (30) days after the date of the system cutover. In the event 


of multiple cutover dates (e.g. multi-site deployment), a thirty (30) day period 


will apply to the services provided during each individual cutover. Any defects 


reported by the Customer to the Company beyond thirty (30) days after the 


Westlake Elementary School Page 6 of 8 


92/175







conclusion of this project will be deemed to be a separate work effort outside 


of this SoW and will be undertaken at the direction of the Customer for 


additional cost. 


Westlake Elementary School Page 7 of 8 


93/175







4 Signature Forms 


4.1 Statement of Work Agreement 


4.2 Change Request Form 


4.3 Work Acceptance Certification 


Westlake Elementary School Page 8 of 8 


94/175







d,,,.-...._g l DEVELOPMENT
GROUP, INC. 


Work Acceptance Certification (Sample) 


Date: ____ _ 


Project Name: 


Project Number: #### 


Project Manager: 


Customer: 


Description of the work completed: 


□Project complete □Phase complete □Major deliverable complete


In reference to the "Master Service Agreement" executed between Development Group, Inc., the 
("Company"), and Santa Cruz City Schools, the ("Customer"), both parties hereby certify, by the signature 
of an authorized representative, that this project, project phase, or major deliverable meets or exceeds 
the agreed-upon performance standards for scope, quality, schedule and cost. The Customer further 
agrees that documentation for all relevant security, legal and regulatory requirements have been 
furnished by the Company and/or have been reviewed by the Customer. 


Additional remarks: 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto have caused this 
Work Acceptance Certification to be fully executed. 


"CUSTOMER" 


Print Name: ___________ _ 


Signature: ___________ _ 


"COMPANY" 


Development Group, Inc. 


Daniel Lockwood 


President 


95/175







Date: ____ _ 


dg,............._l DEVELOPMENT 
GROUP, INC. 


Change Request Form (Sample) 


In reference to the "Master Service Agreement" executed between Development Group, Inc., the 
("Company"), and Santa Cruz City Schools, the ("Customer")regarding Project ___ , both parties 
hereby certify, by the signature of an authorized representative, this Change Request Form will amend 
and be fully incorporated into the existing Statement of Work (SoW), Version ___ � dated [ISSUE 
DATE]. 


1. Change request number for this project:


2. Reason for Change Request:


3. Changes to the SoW:


4. Schedule impact:


5. Cost impact:


SoW / Change Request 


Original value of SoW 


Value of Change Request # 


New value of SoW 


Product{s) Services and/or T&E Total 


$ $ $ 


$ $ $ 


$ $ $ 


6. Purchase order issuance (if applicable): Customer shall issue a written Purchase Order to
Company, or shall issue an amendment to its original Purchase Order issued under this SoW, for
the total amount of$


Except as changed herein, all terms and conditions of the SoW remain in full force and effect. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto have caused this 
Change Request to be fully executed. 


"CUSTOMER" 


Print Name: ___________ _ 


Signature: ___________ _ 


"COMPANY" 


Development Group, Inc. 


Daniel Lockwood 


President 


96/175







dOL DEVELOPMENT 


V 
GROUP, INC. 


Statement of Work Agreement 


Date: ____ _ 


I, representing Santa Cruz City Schools, authorize the foregoing Statement of Work, Version 1, 


dated 11/03/2020 and direct the Company to immediately begin the fulfillment thereof.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the duly authorized representatives of the parties hereto have caused this 
Statement of Work to be fully executed. 


"CUSTOMER" 


Print Name: __________ _ 


Signature: __________ _ 


Daniel Lockwood 


President 


"COMPANY" 


97/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Kleinfelder Proposal for Geotechnical Services at Branciforte Small 
Schools Alternative Family Education 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Kleinfelder proposal for geotechnical services at Branciforte Small Schools 
Alternative Family Education. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of geotechnical and materials special inspection and materials testing 
services for the new modular Alternative Family Education building at Branciforte Small 
Schools, as required by the specifications and local building codes.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$41,500.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.47% of the overall site budget 
$8,759,099.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Branciforte Small Schools 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


98/175







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SJO20P117843 Page 1 of 4 October 22, 2020 
© 2020 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     380 North 1st Street, Suite A, San Jose, CA 95112     p | 831.755.7900 


 
 
 
 
October 22, 2020 
File No. SJO20P117843 
 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller 
Director of Facility Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS) 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, California 95060 
trevormiller@sccs.net 
 
CC: Presley Obenshain (Madi Group, Inc.) 
 
Attention:  Presley Obenshain, Project Manager 
 
Subject: Proposal for Geotechnical and Special Inspection and Testing Services 


New Relocatable Buildings Santa Cruz City Schools Branciforte Small 
Schools AFC  


 
Dear Presley Obenshain: 
 
Pursuant to your recent request, Kleinfelder is pleased to submit the enclosed budgetary estimate 
to perform the geotechnical and materials special inspection and materials testing services as 
required by the specifications and local building codes for the subject project. This proposal is 
based on our experience on similar projects and the following project plans and technical 
specifications provided by project architect, Madi Group Inc. 
 


• Technical Specifications and Structural Plans “Steel Ordinary Moment Resisting Frame 
Modular Building: (3) 24’ X 40’ (960 S.F.) & (1) 48’ X 40’ (1920 S.F.) For Branciforte Small 
Schools – 840 N Branciforte Ave. Santa Cruz, CA 95062 (24’ X 40’ SN. # 24207 – 24212, 
48’ X 40’ SN. #24213 – 24216)” prepared for Santa Cruz City Schools by Enviroplex, Inc. 
dated June 12, 2020 


 
Kleinfelder’s key qualifications include: 
 


• Strong Project Manager and Technical Staff - We have assembled a group of experienced 
professionals with a depth of relevant background, and led by Mrs. Andrea Traum, PE. 


• Experience with Similar Projects - Our team includes individuals with a vast amount of 
local special inspection and materials testing experience.  This experience will ensure that 
there will be no learning curve in working with the code enforcement agency on this 
project. 


• Cost-Effective Services - We offer cost-effective services with labor rates based on 
1-hour minimums.  


 


99/175







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SJO20P117843 Page 2 of 4 October 22, 2020 
© 2020 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     380 North 1st Street, Suite A, San Jose, CA 95112     p | 831.755.7900 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
It is understood this project will consist of the installation of four modular buildings and associated 
sitework.  We have included estimates for testing and inspections of onsite soils, aggregate base, 
asphalt, and concrete. We have also included time for foundation observation, bolting 
observation, torque testing, and field and shop welding observation.  Estimates for associated 
project management, reporting, submittal review and administrative services including 
preparation of DSA final reports has been included.   
 
BUDGETARY ESTIMATE AND BASIS OF CHARGES 
 
The estimated task breakdown and costs associated with the scope of work anticipated for this 
project are shown below.  These costs are based on experience with similar projects with SCCS. 
 
Update Letter for Geotech/Geohaz Report…………….………………………...…………. $1,500 
Construction Inspection and Materials Testing: 


30 Site Visits (including travel)…………………………………..………………...…...$28,000 
Laboratory Testing………………………………………………………………………. $ 8,000 
Dispatch, Project Management and DSA Reporting…………….…………………... $ 4,000 


 
          Total Fee:    $41,500 
 
These costs are based on assumptions based on the provided plans and documents listed above. 
A detailed schedule was not available during the preparation of this proposal; however, we 
understand construction will commence between October 26, 2020 through January 2021. Once 
a detailed construction schedule is provided by the contractor, Kleinfelder should be notified and 
we can modify this proposal. The testing agency must conform to the contractor’s schedules, and 
these could vary according to job conditions. 
 
Please note that our services do not include (1) review of project plans and specifications with 
respect to local codes, (2) supervision, direction, or acceptance of the contractor’s work, (3) 
interpretation or modification of the project plans and specifications, or (4) job site safety. 
 
Kleinfelder’s charges will be made on a time and expense basis for testing and inspection services 
actually performed at the rates noted in the attached budgetary estimate.  The estimate includes 
provisions for normal quality control and review of acceptance testing by the Project Manager.  
Any required overtime, reinspection, conflict resolution, evaluation of alternative construction 
methods or materials, or items not included in this proposal will be charged at the rates current at 
the time the work is performed.  Travel time for our technicians, engineers, and project managers 
will be billed on a portal-to-portal basis from our Salinas office and supplemented from our 
Hayward office as necessary. 
 
In the event conditions arise which are beyond our control, unknown at the time this proposal was 
prepared, unanticipated based on the available information, or differ significantly from the 
assumptions outlined in this proposal, it may be necessary to revise our scope and estimated fee 
in order to complete the project.  Should this occur, we would contact you for authorization prior 
to proceeding with any additional work. 
 
If any of the assumptions outline above or any other portion of this proposal does not meet your 
needs, or if those needs have changed, Kleinfelder stands ready to consider appropriate 


100/175







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SJO20P117843 Page 3 of 4 October 22, 2020 
© 2020 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     380 North 1st Street, Suite A, San Jose, CA 95112     p | 831.755.7900 


modifications, subject to the standards of care to which we adhere as professionals.  Modifications 
such as changes in scope, methodology, scheduling, and contract terms and conditions may 
result in changes to the risks assumed by you and may require adjustments to our fees. 
 
PREVAILING WAGE PROJECT 
 
The California Prevailing Wage Law requires payment of a local “prevailing wage” to workers on 
publicly funded projects.  This includes projects “paid for in whole or in part out of public funds” 
and has been expanded to include various types of payments, credits and monetary equivalents 
provided by the State or public entity.  The Prevailing Wage Law extends to geotechnical 
engineering consultants, their soils/material testing and building inspection personnel.  Services 
subject to prevailing wage are typically non-professional field services and are applicable during 
design as well as construction.  This law significantly increases employee wages for qualified 
activities on publicly funded projects.  It is our understanding that this project falls under the 
definition of a prevailing wage project.  We need to be notified if certified payroll is required.  
Certified payroll will incur administrative processing fees in addition to those listed in this proposal. 
 
DISPATCH COORDINATION 
 
Kleinfelder’s dispatcher Amy James can be reached at 925.225.4575 between the hours of 
8:00 AM and 3:00 PM.  Please provide 24 hours-notice for us to coordinate requested site visits.  
For weekend and/or night work, please provide as much notice as possible so that we may 
accommodate your project scheduling needs.   
 
REPORTING 
 
Daily field reports (DFRs) will be prepared during each site visit, and a copy left with the Project 
Inspector.  Additionally, the DFRs will be compiled into a final report, which will be transmitted to 
our client upon completion of the work.  Laboratory test results will be distributed upon completion. 
 
WORK SAFETY  
 
The safety of our employees is of paramount concern to Kleinfelder. Our employees actively 
participate in onsite safety, and attend safety, tailgate, and preconstruction meetings. You will be 
notified if the site conditions on your project represent a potential safety concern to our employees. 
Unsafe conditions for fieldwork will require a modification of our estimated scope of work and 
associated fees. We will advise you of the additional costs necessary to mitigate these 
unanticipated conditions, if applicable.   
 
LIMITATIONS 
 
Our work will be performed in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily 
exercised by other members of Kleinfelder’s profession practicing in the same locality, under 
similar conditions and at the date the services are provided. Our conclusions, opinions and 
recommendations will be based on a limited number of observations and data.  It is possible that 
conditions could vary between or beyond the data evaluated.  Kleinfelder makes no guarantee or 
warranty, express or implied, regarding the services, communication (oral or written), report, 
opinion, or instrument of service provided. Even with diligent monitoring, construction defects may 
occur. In all cases the contractor is solely responsible for the direction and quality of the work, 
adherence to plans and specifications, and repair of defects. 


101/175







LOCALMKT.WEOH/SJO20P117843 Page 4 of 4 October 22, 2020 
© 2020 Kleinfelder 


KLEINFELDER     380 North 1st Street, Suite A, San Jose, CA 95112     p | 831.755.7900 


This proposal is valid for a period of 45 days from the date of this proposal, unless a longer period 
is specifically required by the RFP in which case that time frame will apply.  This proposal was 
prepared specifically for the client and its designated representatives and may not be provided to 
others without Kleinfelder’s express permission. 
 
AUTHORIZATION 
 
Our current Master Services Agreement with Santa Cruz City Schools (SCCS), dated 
September 14, 2016, is on file.  If this proposal meets with your approval, please sign and date 
the enclosed Work Order then return it to us as our authorization to proceed with the services 
outlined.  A fully executed copy will be returned for your files.  Acceptance of this proposal will 
indicate that an authorized representative has reviewed the scope of work and determined that 
they do not need or want more services than are being proposed at this time.  Any exceptions 
should be noted and may result in adjustment to our fees. 
 
CLOSURE 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and trust that we may be of service on this 
project.  If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact us at 
831.755.7900. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
KLEINFELDER, INC. 
 
 
 
Andrea M. Traum, PE, LEED AP    Curtis Conti 
Senior Project Manager     Staff Professional II  


102/175







 Client Master Services Agreement – Work Order (USA)  October 2020 


 


 


WORK ORDER SJO20W117845 


Issued Pursuant to The Client Master Services Agreement SAL16C46701 effective as of 
September 14, 2016 by and between Santa Cruz City School District (Client) and Kleinfelder, Inc. 
(Kleinfelder). 


 


Client Name:  Santa Cruz City School District   Kleinfelder Project No:  
 
Project Name:  Branciforte Small Schools AFE Project   Work Order Type: (Check One) 
    Time-and-Materials 
    Fixed-Price  
 
Kleinfelder Office:  San Jose, CA   Subcontractor Reference No: N/A 
 
Kleinfelder Contact Name:  Andrea Traum (Project Manager) atraum@kleinfelder.com (408) 595-3275 
 


1. SCOPE OF WORK: Special Inspection and Testing services for the construction of four 
modular buildings and associated sitework for the Branciforte Small Schools Campus. Special inspections 
are expected to include site earthwork, asphalt placement, rebar and concrete placement observation, 
installation of anchor bolts as well as field and shop welding.  


2. LOCATION/CLIENT FACILITY INVOLVED: 840 N. Branciforte Ave. Santa Cruz, CA 95062 


3. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE:  FROM:   TO:   


4. AUTHORIZED FUNDING: $41,500 


5. SPECIAL PROVISIONS:       


 


NOTICE TO PROCEED IS GIVEN ON (DATE):       


 


CLIENT: KLEINFELDER:  


By: ___________________________________ By: ___________________________________ 


Printed Name:         Printed Name:  Thomas G. Minter 
   
Title:         Title:  Vice President, Bay Area Manager 


Address:         Address:  1330 Broadway, Suite 1200 
Oakland, CA 94612 


   


 


 


103/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Moore Twining Proposal for Santa Cruz High School Geotechnical 
Engineering for New Switchgear 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Moore Twining proposal for Santa Cruz High School geotechnical engineering for 
new switchgear-electrical service. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of a geotechnical review of the foundation plans and earthwork 
specifications for the proposed switchgear-electrical service pad at Santa Cruz High School.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,050.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.003% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


104/175







www.mooretwining.com
PH: 559.268.7021
FX:  559.268.7126
2527 Fresno Street
Fresno, CA 93721


October 20, 2020 MTP 20-0839


Mr. Trevor Miller
Director of Facility Services, Santa Cruz City Schools
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz, CA  95060


Subject: Proposal for Geotechnical Review of Foundation Plans and Earthwork
Specifications
Proposed New Switchgear Pad and Retaining Wall
Santa Cruz High School
415 Walnut Avenue
Santa Cruz, California


Dear Mr. Miller:


This proposal was prepared for geotechnical review of the foundation plans and earthwork
specifications for the proposed switchgear pad at Santa Cruz High School in Santa Cruz, California.
As background, Moore Twining Associates, Inc. (Moore Twining) prepared a Geotechnical
Engineering Investigation report for the proposed Switchgear Pad, dated June 5, 2020.


SCOPE OF SERVICES


Moore Twining will review the foundation plans and the civil specifications for conformance with
the recommendations of the geotechnical engineering investigation report dated June 5, 2020.


DELIVERABLES


After review of the documents, plan review comments will be issued by email or memo format.
After the plans have been revised for conformance to the report, an electronic copy of a final
review/approval letter will be provided to the client.


105/175







Proposal for Geotechnical Review of Foundation Plans MTP 20-0839
and Earthwork Specifications
Proposed Switchgear Pad and Retaining Wall October 20, 2020
Santa Cruz High School, Santa Cruz, California Page 2


FEE ESTIMATE


The estimated fee for the geotechnical engineering review services is included in the following
table.


Description of Service Estimated Fee


Review of Foundation Plans, Attend Conference Call with project
architect and structural engineer, and Prepare Final Review Letter


$550


Review of Earthwork Specifications $500


Estimated Total Fee $1,050
Payment is due upon receipt of invoice.  A finance charge may be added to all balances more than
thirty days old.  This is computed at a rate of 1.5 percent per month which is an annual percentage
rate of 18 percent.  A monthly progress invoice will be issued for work completed during each
month.  A final invoice will be issued upon project completion.


The fee in this proposal is valid for a period of 60 days from the date of this proposal.


The cost in this proposal includes transmitting the final copies of the report to the client via first class
U.S. Mail.  If it is desired that reports be express mailed or transmitted via facsimile machine, the
additional cost will be charged in addition to the above lump sum fee on the final invoice.


Payment is due upon receipt of invoice.  A finance charge may be added to all balances over thirty
days old.  This is computed at a rate of 1.5% per month which is an annual percentage rate of 18%.
A monthly progress invoice will be issued for work completed during each month.  A final invoice
will be issued upon project completion.


SCHEDULE


It is anticipated that the final plan review letter will be provided about three (3) days authorization.


TERMS


This proposal and the enclosed Agreement set forth the terms and conditions under which Moore
Twining Associates, Inc., will provide the services discussed in this proposal.  If you find these to
be acceptable, please complete the client block and sign on the space provided on page 1 of the
agreement, initial in the client space provided at the top of page 2 and return.  Receipt of the signed
agreement, or written notice to proceed will serve as our notice to proceed.


106/175







Proposal for Geotechnical Review of Foundation Plans MTP 20-0839
and Earthwork Specifications
Proposed Switchgear Pad and Retaining Wall October 20, 2020
Santa Cruz High School, Santa Cruz, California Page 3


Moore Twining will not provide the services discussed in this proposal unless: 1) an executed
contract from the client, or 2) written authorization which is subject to the terms of the agreement,
is received.  A professional services agreement is attached to this proposal.


LIMITATION OF PROPOSAL


The services discussed in this proposal do not include the following:


- Drilling/ Boring
- Soil Sampling
- Laboratory Testing
- Site Observations or Site Visits
- Recommendation for New Foundations or Structures
- Geotechnical Engineering Investigation


This proposal specifically excludes environmental assessment.  If this service is desirable, our firm
would be pleased to prepare a separate proposal for such an assessment.


CLOSING


We appreciate being considered for this work.  If you have any questions regarding this proposal,
please contact me at (800) 268-7021.


Sincerely,
MOORE TWINING ASSOCIATES, INC.


Read L. Andersen, RGE 2810
Manager
Geotechnical Engineering Division


enclosure: Professional Services Agreement


107/175







PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT


Santa Cruz City Schools and Moore Twining Associates, Inc.


Agreement entered into at      Fresno, California


made this  day of , 2020, by and between


Client: Consultant:


Name Santa Cruz City Schools  Name Moore Twining Associates, Inc.


Address 133 Mission Street, Suite 300 Address 2527 Fresno Street
Santa Cruz, California 95069 Fresno, California  93721


Phone Phone (559) 268-7021
FAX FAX (559) 268-7126


Santa Cruz City Schools and Moore Twining Associates, Inc. agree as follows:


Santa Cruz City Schools (hereafter called Client) intends to:


Retain consultant to provide geotechnical engineering services, as detailed in the attached proposal, identified as MTP 20-0839 dated October 20, 2020,
hereinafter called "project".


A. Moore Twining Associates, Inc. (hereafter called Moore Twining) agrees to perform the following scope of services:


Provide Geotechnical Engineering services for the project outlined in the attached proposal, identified as  MTP 20-0839 dated October 20, 2020.


B. Client agrees to compensate Moore Twining for such services as follows:


Pursuant to the attached proposal, MTP 20-0839 dated October 20, 2020.    Payment is due upon receipt of invoice.  A finance charge may be added to
all balances over 30 days old.  This is computed at a rate of 1.5% per month which is an annual percentage rate of 18%.


C. This Agreement is subject to provisions 1 through 19 attached herewith and made a part hereof.


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this agreement on the dates and upon the provisions stated.


Client Santa Cruz City Schools Consultant Moore Twining Associates, Inc.


By By


Name/Title Name/Title Read Andersen,  Geotechnical Engineering Manager


Date Signed Date Signed


108/175



ZubairA

Typewritten text

10/26/20







Provisions of Agreement (Reference MTP 20-0839)                                      Client Initial_______ Moore Twining ________


Client and Moore Twining agree that the following provisions shall be part of their agreement:


1. This agreement shall be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of client and Moore Twining.  This agreement shall not be assigned by either client
or Moore Twining without the prior written consent of the other.


2. All documents produced by Moore Twining under this agreement shall remain the property of Moore Twining and may not be used by client for any other endeavor without the
written consent of Moore Twining.


3. Unless otherwise stated, Moore Twining will have access to the Site for activities necessary for the performance of their services.  Moore Twining will take precautions to minimize
damage due to these activities, but have not included in the fee the cost of restoration of any resulting damage.


4. Unless otherwise specified, this agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California.


5. Client agrees not to permit any other person to use plans, drawings, or other work product prepared by Moore Twining, which plans, drawings, or other work product are not final
and which are not signed, and stamped or sealed by Moore Twining.  If Moore Twining's work product exists in electronic or computerized format, or is transferred in electronic
or computerized format, the stamp, seal and signature shall be original and may not be a computer-generated copy, photocopy, or facsimile transmission of the original.


6. Client agrees that if client requests services not specified pursuant to the scope of services description within this agreement, client agrees to pay for all such additional services
as extra work according to Moore Twining's current fee schedule.


7. This agreement may be terminated by the client or Moore Twining should the other fail to perform its obligations hereunder. In the event of termination, client shall pay Moore
Twining for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and reimbursable termination expenses.


8. Client acknowledges that Moore Twining is not responsible for the performance of work or Site safety by third parties including, but not limited to, the construction contractor and
its subcontractors.


9. Client shall pay the costs of checking and inspections fees, zoning and annexations applications fees, assessment fees, soils engineering fees, soils testing fees, aerial topography
fees, and all other fees, permits, bond premiums, title company charges, blueprints and reproductions, and all other charges not specifically covered by the terms of this agreement.


10. Moore Twining is not responsible for delay caused by activities or factors beyond Moore Twining's reasonable control, including but not limited to, delays by governmental agencies,
acts of God, failure of client to furnish timely information or approve or disapprove of Moore Twining's services or work product promptly, faulty performance by client or other
contractors or governmental agencies.  When such delays beyond Moore Twining's reasonable control occur, client agrees Moore Twining is not responsible for damages nor shall
Moore Twining be deemed to be in default of this agreement.


11. Moore Twining shall not be liable for damages resulting from the actions or inactions of governmental agencies including, but not limited to permit processing, environmental impact
reports, dedications, general plans and amendments thereto, zoning matters, annexations or consolidations, use or conditional use permits, project or plan approvals, and building
permits.


12. Moore Twining makes no representation concerning the estimated quantities and probable costs made in connection with maps, plans, specifications, reports or drawings other than
that all such costs are estimates only and actual costs will vary.  It is the responsibility of client to verify costs.  In addition, estimates of land areas provided under this agreement
are not to be considered precise unless consultant specifically agrees to provide the precise determination of such areas.


13. Client agrees that in accordance with generally accepted construction practices, construction contractor will be required to assume sole and complete responsibility for job site
conditions during the course of construction of the project, including all safety of all persons and property; that this requirement shall be made to apply continuously and not be limited
to normal working hours, and client further agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Moore Twining harmless from any and all liability, real or alleged, in connection with the
performance of service on this project, excepting liability arising from the sole negligence of Moore Twining.


14. Moore Twining makes no warranty, either expressed or implied, as to its findings, recommendations, plans, specifications, or professional advice except that the service or work
product were performed pursuant to generally accepted standards of practice in California in effect at the time of performance.


15. In the event the client agrees to, permits, authorizes, constructs or permits construction of changes in the plans, specifications, and documents or does not follow recommendations
or reports prepared by Moore Twining pursuant to this agreement, which changes are not consented to in writing by Moore Twining, client acknowledges that the changes and their
effects are not the responsibility of Moore Twining and client agrees to release Moore Twining from all liability arising from the use of such changes and further agrees to defend,
indemnify and hold harmless Moore Twining, its officers, directors, principals, agents and employees from and against all claims, demands, damages or costs arising from the changes
and their effects.


16. In the event client discovers or becomes aware of changed field or other conditions which necessitate clarification, adjustments, modifications or other changes during any phase
of the project, client agrees to notify Moore Twining and engage Moore Twining to prepare the necessary clarifications, adjustments, modifications or other changes to Moore
Twining's services or work product before activities commence or further activity proceeds.  Further, client agrees to have a provision in its construction contracts for the project
which requires the contractor to notify client of any changes in field or other conditions so that client may in turn notify Moore Twining pursuant to this paragraph.


17. Client shall indemnify and hold harmless Moore Twining and all of its personnel from and against any and all claims, damages, losses, and expenses (including reasonable attorney
fees) arising out of or resulting from the performance of the services, provided that any such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in whole or in part by the negligent act,
omission, and/or strict liability of client, anyone directly or indirectly employed by the client (except Moore Twining), or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.


18. In recognition of the relative risks, rewards, and benefits of the project to both client and Moore Twining, the risks have been allocated such that client agrees that, to the fullest
extent permitted by law, Moore Twining's total liability to client and to all contractors and subcontractors for any and all injuries, claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claim
expenses arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes, shall not exceed ten (10) times Moore Twining’s fee or $25,000.00, whichever is less.  Such causes include, but
are not limited to, Moore Twining’s negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract, or breach of warranty.


19. (a) Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement and except for the provisions of (b) and ©, if a dispute arises regarding Moore Twining's fees pursuant to this contract,
and if the fee dispute cannot be settled by discussions between client and Moore Twining, both client and Moore Twining agree to attempt to settle the fee dispute by mediation
through the American Arbitration Association [or other mediation service] before recourse to arbitration. If mediation does not resolve the fee dispute, such dispute shall be settled
by binding arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association, and judgment upon the award rendered by the
Arbitrator(s) may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. (b) does not preclude or limit Moore Twining's right to elect to file an action for collection of fees if the amount
in dispute is within the jurisdiction of the small claims court. ©) does not preclude or limit Moore Twining's right to elect to perfect or enforce applicable mechanics lien remedies.


109/175



ZubairA

Typewritten text

RA







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Moore Twining Change Order #1 for Santa Cruz High School 
Underground Utility Replacement Special Inspection and 
Materials Testing  


     
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Moore Twining change order #1 for Santa Cruz High School underground utility 
replacement special inspection and materials testing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional scope to provide testing of the aggregate base used on 
this project as well as inspections and material testing of concrete. Requirements for sampling 
and testing concrete were not indicated in the original project documents provided. However, 
based on further communications with Bartos Architecture, the scope of services will include 
periodic inspections during placement of reinforcing steel and continuous inspections during 
concrete placement and testing. The previously approved contract amount was $15,082.00 and 
the new total contract, including this change order, will be $22,037.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $6,955.00, (46.11% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


110/175







  


 


CENTRAL VALLEY 


2527 Fresno Street 
Fresno, CA 93721 


559-268-7021 • 559-268-7126 Fax 


 CENTRAL COAST 


501 Ortiz Avenue 
Sand City, CA 93955 


831-392-1056 • 831-392-1059 


NORTHERN CALIFORNIA 


165 Commerce Circle, Suite D 
Sacramento, CA 95815 


916-381-9477 • 916-381-9478 Fax 


SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA 


11800 Sterling Avenue, Suite C 
Riverside, CA  92503 


951-898-8932 • 951-898-8974 Fax 


 


October 23, 2020       Change Order To MTP No. 0881-20 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Director of Facility Services 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, California 95060 
 
Project: Santa Cruz High School – Utility Replacement 


 415 Walnut Avenue 


 Santa Cruz, California 95060 


 


Subject: Change Order No. 1: $6,955.00 


 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
It is our understanding that our initial proposal to provide special inspection and materials testing, dated 
September 25, 2020 was approved by the District for Moore Twining to provide special inspections and 
materials testing services. Our proposal dated September 25, 2020 had a total estimate of $15,082.00. 
Based on subsequent email correspondence between Bartos Architecture and Moore Twining, additional 
scopes of work were added to our services. The added scope of work was to provide a testing event to 
verify that the aggregate base used for the project meets the requirements of a Caltrans Class II Aggregate 
base as well as to provide inspections and materials testing services for concrete.  
 
The added scope was presented in a revised proposal dated October 20, 2020 and presented below as 
Change Order No. 1 for the project. the revised proposal had a total combines estimate of $22,290.00.  
 
The added scope of services and total estimated fee for Change Order No. 1 is presented below.  
 
Earthwork 


 
Moore Twining’s original proposal for materials testing and special inspection services did not include 
laboratory testing of the aggregate base to verify compliance with Class II Aggregate Base. The following 
testing was added to our original proposal dated September 25, 2020. 
 


Earthwork Material Tests 


Material Test Estimated Quantity 


Aggregate Base* Sieve Analysis 1 


Aggregate Base* R-Value  1 


Aggregate Base* Sand Equivalent 1 


Aggregate Base* Durability Index 1 


*It was originally assumed that the Contractor would provide a submittal for the aggregate base indicating compliance with a 
Caltrans Class II Aggregate Base.   


 


 


111/175







Santa Cruz HS Utility Replacement Project, Santa Cruz, California  Change Order To MTP: 0881-20 


Construction Inspection and Materials Testing  


October 23, 2020 Page 2 


Cast-In-Place Concrete  


 


Moore Twining’s original proposal for material testing and inspection services, dated September 25, 2020 
did not include inspections and testing related to concrete. The added scope of work related to concrete is 
as presented below. 
 
The cast-in-place concrete for this project will consist of the replacement of the PCC pavement between 
Buildings A, B and F as well as north of building F and west of building M, and the curbs associated with 
the project.  Based on the project plans provided the concrete PCC pavement will consist of 6 inches of 
concrete with #4 rebar located at 18 on-center, it is estimated that approximately 90 cubic yards of concrete 
will be required for the project.   
 
Requirements for sampling and testing concrete were not indicated in the project documents provided. 
However, based on further communications with Bartos Architecture and the Santa Cruz City Schools, 
our scope of services will include periodic inspections during reinforcing steel placement, continuous 
inspections during concrete placement and sampling and testing concrete. It has been assumed that a set 
of four (4) 6-inch by 12-inch concrete cylinders will be cast for each 50 cubic yards or fraction thereof for 
each day concrete is placed. The cylinders will be transported to our laboratory and tested to determine 
compressive strength. One cylinder will be tested at 7 days, two cylinders will be tested at 28 days, and 
one cylinder will be held and tested at 56 days if the average compressive strength is not met at 28 days. 
Slump and temperature tests will be performed at the time the compressive strength specimens are cast 
 
It should be noted that a construction schedule was not available to prepare this proposal and fee estimate. 
Therefore, it has been assumed that that a total of 4 pours will be required for the project.  
 
The following tasks related to the cast-in-place concrete observation and testing and their estimated 
durations are as follows: 
 


Estimated Inspection for Reinforcement of Cast-In-Place Concrete 


Member  Estimated Trips Hours per Trip Total Hours 


PCC Pavements 4 4 16 


Estimated Inspection Hours: 16 


 


Estimated Inspection/Sampling for Cast-In-Place Concrete 


Member Estimated Trips Hours per Trip Total Hours 


PCC Pavements 4 6 24 


Sample Pickup 3 2 6 


Estimated Inspection Hours: 30 


 


Structural Concrete Material Tests for Cast-in-Place Concrete 


Structural Element Test Estimated Quantity 


PCC Pavements Concrete Compressive Strength 4 (Set of 4) 


 


112/175







Santa Cruz HS Utility Replacement Project, Santa Cruz, California  Change Order To MTP: 0881-20 


Construction Inspection and Materials Testing  


October 23, 2020 Page 3 


 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 - ESTIMATED FEES 


 
Our estimated fees to provide the testing and inspection services for the added scope described in this 
change order is presented in Table 1 below.  
 


Table 1 - Preliminary Fee Estimate to Provide Materials Testing & Inspection Services 


Santa Cruz High School - Utility Trench Replacement 


415 Walnut Avenue, Santa Cruz, California 95060 


Scope Description Units Quantity Unit Fee Estimated Fee 


Earthwork 


Aggregate R-Value Test 1 $210.00  $210.00  


Aggregate Sieve  Test 2 $130.00  $260.00  


Aggregate Durability Index Test 3 $120.00  $360.00  


Aggregate Sand Equivalent Test 4 $93.00  $372.00  


Subtotal_ $1,202.00  


Cast-In-Place Structural Concrete 


Inspection for Reinforcing Steel Hour 16 $110.00 $1,760.00  


Concrete Placement and Inspections Hour 24 $112.00 $2,688.00  


Sample Pickup Hour 6 $60.00 $360.00  


Concrete Compressive Strength Set 4 $85.00 $340.00  


Mileage, Vehicle and Equipment Charge Trip 11 $55.00 $605.00  


Subtotal_ $5,753.00  


 Estimated Fee for Change Order No. 1_ $6,955.00  


 


The total combined fee estimates between our original proposal, dated September 25, 2020 and 


estimated amount for Chang Order No. 1 totals $22,037.00. 


 
It should be noted that a construction schedule and project specifications manual where not available to 


prepare this fee estimate. It should also be noted that our services are directly influenced by the 


construction schedule, weather conditions, scheduling by the Client, efficiency of the contractor and 
subcontractors performing the work and other factors outside our control; thus, our fees could be more or 


less than estimated.  Since these items are beyond our control, our services will be provided on a time and 


materials basis and the estimated fee presented in this proposal should serve as a budget estimate for these 
services.  Moore Twining will only charge for those services performed and billed in accordance with the 


fees and invoicing section of this proposal.  Our firm will notify you of any scope changes that occur 


during the course of the project if these scope changes increase our fees. 
 


Please note that it has been assumed that there would be no over-time or weekend work for this project 


and therefore has been excluded in our fee estimate. 
 


 


113/175







Santa Cruz HS Utility Replacement Project, Santa Cruz, California  Change Order To MTP: 0881-20 


Construction Inspection and Materials Testing  


October 23, 2020 Page 4 


CLOSING REMARKS 


 
All other items as noted in our original proposal remain applicable. It is understood that if this change 
order is found to be acceptable, Santa Cruz City Schools will issue a purchase order (PO) or agreement to 
incorporate the added scopes of work.  Should you have any questions or comments, or if we may be of 
any service to you, please contact us at (831) 392-1056. 
 
We sincerely appreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal and look forward to working with Santa 
Cruz City Schools on this project. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Moore Twining Associates, Inc. 


Construction Inspection Division 


 
Patricio Villegas, E.I.T.   Scott Krauter, RGE #2358 
Staff Engineer   Geotechnical Division Assistant Manager 


114/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Netxperts Inc. Proposal for Districtwide Router Installation 
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Netxperts Inc. proposal for Districtwide router installation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Board previously approved and the District purchased hardware for a keyless electronic 
lock system. This system allows for additional safety measures that include the ability to 
lockdown the campus remotely. In addition, it will give everyone in the district their own 
personal electronic ID card key programmed to the appropriate doors where they need access. 
This proposal consists of the installation of the routers at each school site. These routers 
provide the Wi-Fi connection between the key cards and the lock hardware. This is part of the 
Districtwide plan for site security and key management. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$120,687.15, Measure A & B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


115/175







116/175







117/175







118/175







119/175







120/175







121/175







122/175







123/175







124/175







125/175







126/175







127/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Nor Cal Catering Truck Repair Quote for Food Truck Fabrication 
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Nor Cal Catering Truck Repair quote for food truck fabrication. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal includes completion of the food truck fabrication to support the Santa Cruz High 
School kitchen modernization. Due to COVID-19, the original company contracted for this 
project went out of business. This contract will complete the fabrication of the kitchen portion 
of the truck conversion, and it will allow the District to acquire a county health operation 
permit. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$69,732.29, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.21% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


128/175







Nor-Cal Catering Truck Repair
(408)242-0451
1041 N 11th St San Jose CA, 95112


 Santa Cruz Truck
Updated Estimate 10/21/2020


Description Qty Unit price Total price


HCD INSIGNIA 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00


BLUEPRINTS 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00


Air Conditioner (tax & installation included) 1 $1,800.00 $1,800.00


Passenger seat with seatbelt (tax & installation included) 1 $500.00 $500.00


BATTERY 2 $120.00 $240.00


BATTERY CHARGER 1 $250.00 $250.00


ELECTRICAL (NEEDS TO BE FIX TO PASS INSPECTION) 1 $800.00 $800.00


SOAP DISPENSER 1 $28.00 $28.00


MOUNT DOOR SELF CLOSING 1 $120.00 $120.00


SERVING DOOR ( SHOCK, ACRYLIC PLASTIC (2) SELFCLOSING SCREEN)1 $500.00 $500.00


counter modification(under the grill) 1 $440.00 $440.00


INTERIOR BUILD ( MISSING DOORS, DIVIDERS, DRAWER ETC...) 1
$1,000.00


$1,000.00


WATER PUMP 1 $180.00 $180.00


WATER HEATER 1 $300.00 $300.00


PLUMBING(NEEDS TO BE FIXED TO PASS INSPECTION) 1 $500.00 $500.00


129/175







MOTOR FAN FOR HOOD 1 $700.00 $700.00


STAINLESS STEEL FILTERS FOR HOOD 7 $45.00 $315.00


GRIDDLE AMERICAN RANGE 36" LP 1 $1,883.00 $1,883.00


OVEN/RANGE 6 BURNER AND FULL SIZE OVEN 1 $1,689.00 $1,689.00


STEAM TABLE 1 $800.00 $800.00


TRUE REFRIGERATOR 1 $2,300.00 $2,300.00


TRUE FREEZER 1 $2,800.00 $2,800.00


TRUE SANDWITCH PREP 1 $3,010.00 $3,010.00


LED LIGHTS ( INSIDE) 8 $95.00 $760.00


LP TANK 1 $600.00 $600.00


PROPANE REGULATOR 1 $180.00 $180.00


GENERATOR CUMMINS ONAM 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00


ANSUL SYSTEM 1 $2,800.00 $2,800.00


HARWARE (RIVETS, SILICONNE, SASH LOCKS ) 1 $400.00 $400.00


LABOR (PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL, GAS LINES, INSTALL EQUIPMENT, ...) 1 $31,905.00 $31,905.00


Taxes for bolded items 9.25% $26,295.00 $2,432.29


$0.00


Notes: Estimate only valid for 30 days Subtotal $69,732.29


Adjustments $0.00


$69,732.29


130/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Palace Business Solutions Proposal for Soquel High School Office 
Science Tables 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Palace Business Solutions proposal for Soquel High School science tables. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of four new tables for the science room 206 at Soquel High School. These 
are acid resistant tops and provide appropriate student seating as part of the classroom 
modernization. This furniture will allow for social distancing during the pandemic.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$3,527.24, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.001% of the overall site budget 
$34,830,967.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Soquel High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


131/175







Palace Business Solutions P R O P O S A L2606 Chanticleer Ave., Santa Cruz, CA 95065
10-27-2020Furniture Division


Todd Trowbridge, Regional Vice President
P 831.476.3815 ext.352   C 831.247.1866
toddt@gopalace.com


SCCS Soquel HS RM 206 Science Tables


Unit Sell


TaxableLine # MFG Product Qty. Extended Sell


1 PAL PALACE NOTE WITH PEPPM 1 $0.00


Make PO to: $0.00 True


Palace Business Solutions
c/o TROWBRIDGE ENTERPRISES
PO BOX 399234
SAN FRANCISCO, CA  94139-9234
PEPPM Contract #529977-005


2 DWC P7124K36N 4 $574.40


TABLE, PLAIN, PHENLC TOP, 30X48 $2,297.60 True


2-1/4" solid square legs, with 5/16"
hanger bolts installed, supplied nuts
and washers
3/4" Phenolic Table Surface
30"D x 48"W x 36"H
Aprons
are 13/16"D x 4-1/2"H with heavy-duty 13
gauge steel corner braces
Wood: Red Oak Stain:Northwoods


3 DFF FRT 1 $0.00


Freight $0.00 False


4 TRI RDI-E 1 $938.40


Receive Deliver Assemble $938.40 True


Prevailing Wage
DIR provided with PO


SCCS Soquel HS RM 206 Science Tables_v1.0_tc_201027 Page 1 of 2


132/175







Palace Business Solutions P R O P O S A L2606 Chanticleer Ave., Santa Cruz, CA 95065
10-27-2020Furniture Division


Todd Trowbridge, Regional Vice President
P 831.476.3815 ext.352   C 831.247.1866
toddt@gopalace.com


SCCS Soquel HS RM 206 Science Tables


Unit Sell


TaxableLine # MFG Product Qty. Extended Sell


Sub-Total Customer Price $3,236.00


9.0% Sales Tax $291.24


Total Customer Price $3,527.24


Terms and Conditions:
Final Acceptance of Proposal under Palace Furniture Terms and Conditions of Sale.
All furniture is non-returnable. This proposal is valid for 30 days.


Applicable local taxes will be added at time of invoice.


Date:


Autorized Buyer Printed Name and Title:


Purchase Order Number or Name for Purchase Order Approval:


Autorized Buyer's Signature:


Notes:


SCCS Soquel HS RM 206 Science Tables_v1.0_tc_201027 Page 2 of 2


133/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.10. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: PSR Electric Proposal for Branciforte Small Schools Alternative 
Family Education Electrical Safe Off 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the PSR Electric proposal for Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education 
electrical safe off. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of the safe disconnection and removal of all electrical power, fire alarms, 
data cables and low voltage wiring in preparation of the removal of the damaged Alternative 
Family Education building at Branciforte Small Schools. This work was discussed and approved 
by the site bond committee on 12/11/2019.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,800.00, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.02% of the overall site budget 
$8,759,099.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Branciforte Small Schools 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


134/175







135/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.11. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: PSR Electric Proposal Mission Hill Middle School Switchgear 
Electrical Work 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the PSR Electric proposal for Mission Hill Middle School switchgear electrical work. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of identifying the existing equipment and cabling for the electrical 
engineer to develop the final bid documents for the switchgear replacement at Mission Hill 
Middle School.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$13,260.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.07% of the overall site budget 
$17,648,740.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Mission Hill Middle School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


136/175







137/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.12. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: PSR Electric Proposal for Santa Cruz High School Switchgear 
Electrical Work 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the PSR Electric proposal for Santa Cruz High School switchgear electrical work. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of identifying the existing equipment and cabling for the electrical 
engineer to develop the final bid documents for the switchgear replacement at Santa Cruz High 
School.  
 
   
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$13,260.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.04% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


138/175







139/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.13. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Santa Cruz Signs Quote for Westlake Elementary School Lift 
Signage 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Santa Cruz Signs quote for the Westlake Elementary School lift signage. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of American with Disabilities Act and braille use signage for the upper 
and lower handicap lifts at Westlake Elementary School. This signage will provide the public 
with a phone number to call for assistance in using the lifts.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$989.75, Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.007% of the overall site budget 
$13,439,288.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Westlake Elementary School  
 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


140/175







Santa Cruz Signs
501-A River St., Santa Cruz, CA, 95060
sales@SantaCruzSigns.com
(831) 337-4467


www.santacruzsigns.com


Quote 101849
Braille Signage


SALES REP INFO
Graphic Design


design@santacruzsigns.com
(831) 337-4467


QUOTE DATE
11/12/2020


QUOTE DUE DATE
11/12/2020


QUOTE EXPIRY DATE
12/12/2020


TERMS
50/50


ORDERED BY
Santa Cruz City Schools
536 Palm Street
Santa Cruz, CA, 95060, United States


CONTACT INFO
Trevor Miller
trevormiller@sccs.net
+1 831-429-3904


# ITEM QTY UOM U.PRICE TOTAL (EXCL. TAX)


Braille Signage 4 Each $175.00 $700.001
9.25"H x 23.5"W x .125 thick Rowmark plastic with applied
tactile copy and Braille.
White copy on 501 Blue background.
Tamperproof screws included.


Installation 1 Each $225.00 $225.002
Installation of all signage on this estimate. This is labor only.


Monterey Signs and Santa Cruz Signs Terms and Conditions


*All quotes are valid for 30 days.
*All quotes are considered an estimate. Any additional labor or materials required to complete your project will be added to the final
invoice.
*We kindly request a deposit of 50% of your quote before we begin design or production unless specified in writing.
*Sign permits and final inspections will be billed at actual cost from the City or County, plus $90 per hour staff time.
*A signed or emailed quote accepting the charges (plus deposit) must be received prior to beginning work.
*All labor/installation is non-union and/or non-prevailing wage unless specifically stated above


Subtotal:
Sales Tax (9.25%):
Total:


$925.00
$64.75


$989.75


SIGNATURE: DATE:


PRINTED ON 2020-11-12 10:21:32 -0800 BY GD CREATED BY GD 1/1141/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.14. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Sierra School Equipment Change Order #1 for Soquel High School 
Classroom Furniture Installation 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Sierra School Equipment change order #1 for Soquel High School classroom 
furniture installation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of additional labor to move furniture into the gym for storage and 
then into the classrooms for set up due to COVID-19 project delays. The previously approved 
contract amount was $40,960.00 and the new total contract, including this change order, will 
be $50,839.00. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $9,879.00 (24.11% increase to the contract), Measure A Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


142/175







143/175







144/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.15. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Waterproofing Associates, Inc. Contract for Harbor High School PA 
Building Roof 


      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Waterproofing Associates, Inc. contract for Harbor High School Performing Arts 
building roof. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The project consists of removal and replacement of approximately 12,300 sq. ft. of roofing and 
associated components and re-roofing of the Performing Arts Building Harbor High. 
 
A request for bids was sent out to contractors, noticed to the builder’s plan room and 
advertised in the local newspapers. Eight bids were received. Waterproofing Associates was the 
successful low bidder. 


Bid Summary 


 
Staff recommends that the bid be awarded to Waterproofing Associates, the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$147,568.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.51% of the overall site budget 


CONTRACTOR CITY BASE BID 


Waterproofing Associates, Inc. Mountain View $147,568.00 


Legacy Roofing & Waterproofing, Inc. San Jose $187,350.00 


ALCAL Specialty Contracting, Inc. Fremont $167,031.00 


Brazos Urethane Madera $258,600.00 


Best Contracting Services, Inc. Gardena $224,666.00 


I&A Contractor Inc. Redwood City $189,000.00 


Andy’s Roofing Company, Inc. San Leandro $232,500.00 


Scudder Roofing Company Marina $330,390.00 


LOW BID Waterproofing Associates $147,568.00 


145/175







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.15. 


$28,554,079.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Harbor High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


 Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


146/175







147/175







148/175







149/175







150/175







151/175







152/175







153/175







Hybrid 
Implementation 
TimelineDECEMBER 2, 2020


December 2, 2020


154/175







155/175







State 
Monitoring 
System


• Rate of new cases and test positivity 
rate determine tiered placement 


• Santa Cruz County - average of 74 
cases per day


• 189 new cases per 100,000 
residents


• Santa Cruz County – 4.6% 
positivity rate


• Santa Cruz County placed on Tier 
1 - “Widespread” Risk


156/175







State 
Monitoring 
System


• Rate of new cases and test positivity rate 
determine tiered placement 


• Santa Cruz County - 7.4 new cases 
per 100,000 residents


• Santa Cruz County - 3.5% positivity 
rate


• Santa Cruz County placed on Tier 2 -
“Substantial” Risk


• Counties must remain in a tier for at 
least 3 weeks before moving forward


• To move forward, county must meet 
next tier’s criteria for two consecutive 
weeks


• If county metrics worsen for two 
consecutive weeks, county moves to a 
more restrictive tier157/175







State 
Monitoring 
System


• Rate of new cases and test positivity rate 
determine tiered placement 


• Santa Cruz County - 7.4 new cases 
per 100,000 residents


• Santa Cruz County - 3.5% positivity 
rate


• Santa Cruz County placed on Tier 2 -
“Substantial” Risk


• Counties must remain in a tier for at 
least 3 weeks before moving forward


• To move forward, county must meet 
next tier’s criteria for two consecutive 
weeks


• If county metrics worsen for two 
consecutive weeks, county moves to a 
more restrictive tier158/175







Original 
Proposed 
Timeline for 
January Hybrid 
Implementation 
- Elementary


Allows for smaller 
groups to learn campus 
& classroom safety 
protocols


Monday Tuesday Wednesd


ay


Thursday Friday


4


-Small Cohorts 


Resume


-DL Resumes 


5


ALL Distance 


Learning


6


ALL DL


7


ALL DL


8


ALL DL


11


ALL DL


12


ALL DL


13


ALL DL


14


TK- 2 async to 


transition 


3rdd-5th DL


15


TK- 2 async to 


prep classrooms


3rd-5th DL


18


MLK Day -


No School


19


TK- 2 async to 


prep classrooms


3rd-5th DL


20


ALL DL


21


TK-2


In person starts


3-5 DL


22


TK-2


In person


3-5 Async to prep 


classes


25


TK-2


In person


3-5 Async to 


transition


26


TK-2


In person


3-5 Async to prep 


classes


27


ALL DL


28


TK-5th in person


29


TK-5th in person


159/175







Original Proposed 
Timeline for 
January Hybrid 
Implementation -
Secondary


Provides for 6th/9th 
Grade Orientation to 
campus


Allows for smaller 
groups to learn campus 
& classroom safety 
protocols


Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday


4


Staff Work 


Day


5


PD Day


6


DL Resumes 


- Period 1


Prep for 


Hybrid


7


DL Resumes -


Period 2


Prep for Hybrid


8


DL Resumes -


Period 3


Prep for Hybrid


11


DL Resumes -


Period 4


Prep for Hybrid


12


DL Resumes 


- Period 5


Prep for 


Hybrid


13


DL Resumes 


- Period 6


Prep for 


Hybrid


14


DL & Training 


students for 


return


Prep for Hybrid


15


DL & Training 


students for 


return


Prep for Hybrid


18


MLK Day -


No School


19


6th/9th 


Group 1


Orientation


20


6th/9th Group 


2 


Orientation


21


6th/9th Group 1 


Day 1


22


6th/9th Group 2 


Day 1


25


All Other 


Students  intro 


day


(Group 1 AM/ 


Group 2 PM)


26


All Students 


Group 1 Day 


1


27


All Students 


Group 2 Day 


1


28


All Students 


Day 2


29


All Students


Day 2


160/175







Current 
Proposed 
Timeline for 
Staggered 
Hybrid 
Implementation 
- Elementary


Allows for smaller 
groups to learn 
campus & classroom 
safety protocols


Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday


TK- 2 async 


to prep 


classrooms


3rd-5th DL


TK- 2 async 


to prep 


classrooms


3rd-5th DL


ALL DL TK-2


In person 


starts


3-5 DL


TK-2


In person


3-5 Async 


to prep 


classes


TK-2


In person


3-5 Async to 


transition


TK-2


In person


3-5 Async to 


prep classes


ALL DL TK-5th in 


person


TK-5th in 


person


161/175







Current 
Proposed 
Staggered 
Timeline  Hybrid 
Implementation 
- Secondary


Provides for 6th/9th 
Grade Orientation to 
campus


Allows for smaller 
groups to learn campus 
& classroom safety 
protocols


Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday


Distance 


Learning 


All Groups


19


6th/9th 


Group 1


Orientation


20


6th/9th Group 


2 


Orientation


21


6th/9th 


Group 1 


Day 1


22


6th/9th 


Group 2 


Day 1


25


All Other 


Students  


intro day


(Group 1 


AM/Group 


2 PM)


26


All Students 


Group 1 Day 


1


27


All Students 


Group 2 Day 


1


28


All Students 


Day 2


29


All 


Students


Day 2


162/175







Recommendation


Delay action on a timeline to 
implement Hybrid Instruction 
until the virus is not widespread


Approve two week staggered 
timeline for Hybrid 
Implementation to be utilized 
when it is safe to determine a 
Hybrid Implementation date


163/175







 


AGENDA ITEM: 6.4.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Hybrid Implementation Timeline 
      
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the recommendation to delay action on a timeline to implement Hybrid Instruction 


until the virus is not widespread, and approve recommendation for an eventual staggered 


implementation of Hybrid Instruction. 


 


BACKGROUND: 
On Monday, November 16, Santa Cruz County was moved to the “Widespread” Purple Tier on 
the State Blueprint for Economic Recovery.  When a County is placed in the Purple Tier schools 
cannot expand in-person instruction to a Hybrid Model.   
 
Over the last several months, staff have worked with community stakeholders to make plans 
for the potential expansion of in-person instruction in January following Winter Break.   The 
Superintendent’s Reopening Advisory Committee originally recommended that there be two 
weeks of distance learning following the holiday break to ensure that any potential virus 
exposures during the holiday period were detected.  The committee also recommended that 
there be a gradual, staggered  implementation of Hybrid Instruction to allow for a safe, 
effective transition with the youngest students beginning first.  This will allow students to learn 
new safety protocols and have a school orientation with fewer students on campus.   
 
Given the County’s current Purple Tier Placement, staff cannot outline a specific date and 
timeline for Hybrid Implementation.  However, staff does recommend a plan for a staggered 
implementation when it is safe to do so.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Technology is needed to implement Hybrid Instruction   
 


Item Quantity Estimated Cost  Funding Source 


Chromebooks 1400 $285 each 
$399,000 total 


(CARES Act, Restricted) 


Webcams 350 $87 each 
$30,450 total 


(CARES Act, Restricted) 


164/175







 


AGENDA ITEM: 6.4.1.1. 


Microphones  350 $125 each 
$43,750 total 


(CARES Act, Restricted) 


Sound Bars 350 $160 each 
$56,000 


(CARES Act, Restricted) 


Student Headphones & 
Mics 


3500 
 


$7.50 each 
$26,250 


(Learning Loss 
Mitigation, Restricted) 


TOTAL COST ESTIMATE    $555,450   


 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


165/175







 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.4.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  District and Bond Communications 
     
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the job description for a Public Information Officer to support district wide 
communications.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
At the Board Study Session on October 28th, the Board discussed the importance of increasing 
and improving communication on the Bond.  There was also a discussion about the need for 
communications support districtwide.   
 
The Board asked staff to bring back a plan to support district communications.  Staff looked at 
different job descriptions for Public Information Officers within school districts.  We also 
contacted different communications firms to determine their ability to support our district and 
assess costs.  
 
Staff recommend a full-time Public Information Officer for several reasons.  The demand for 
communication is high in all areas of the district, especially given the pandemic.  Our ability to 
recruit and train a high-quality candidate increases with a full time employment opportunity.  
The volume of information that needs to be communicated across the organization is 
significant. And, continuity of communication is invaluable for both our external and internal 
stakeholders. Working with an outside firm, would not allow us the depth of support that is 
needed. 
 


Communications Options Estimated Costs 


Full Time Public Information Officer to support 
districtwide communication with 50% of the position 
dedicated to Bond communication 


$120,000 to $129,000 including 
$30,000 benefits 


Half Time Public Information Officer for Bond  $75,000 to 80,000 including 
$30,000 in benefits 


Contract 20 hours a week with a communications firm - It $1,700  - $2,400 a week   


166/175







 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.4.2.1. 


has been difficult to get firms to respond to our inquiries.  
Some were not interested in working with school districts. 
We received two estimates - one for $85 an hour and one 
for $120 an hour.  


$76,500 - $108,000 for half time 
support for 45 weeks a year. 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$120,000 - 129,000 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6 :  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


 
 


167/175







Public Information Officer  Page 1 of 3 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


JOB DESCRIPTION 


PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER  


 


DEFINITION: 


Under the direction of the Superintendent, plan, organize, and control all public information activities related 


to the school district. The Public Information Officer directs and manages the public information, internal 


and external communications, marketing and partnerships to support the objectives and priorities of Santa 


Cruz City School District. The Public Information Officer will serve as the conduit for district communication 


for all stakeholders and employ best practices and a variety of communication tools to inform, engage, and 


connect employees, parents, and community members.  


 


 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:   


 Develop and coordinate procedures regarding all District public relations matters, which include 
District media relations, community relations, promotional functions, special events, marketing, 
social media and selected publications.  


 Develop, prepare and edit all correspondence to public media that may include press releases, 
executive summaries, reports, highlighted articles, promotional materials, etc., in compliance with 
policies, regulations, and guidelines.  


 Organize and manage all communication and public relations related to construction, facilities and 


bond projects in the district.  


 Prepare and provide explanations on proposed and on-going building programs, projects and 


activities.  


 In coordination with senior administration, coordinate the preparation for all meeting and agenda 


materials on behalf of the Business Department for public meetings related to the Bond and 


specifically for the Bond Oversight Committee (BOC).  


 Receive and fulfill all Public Records Act requests in a timely manner. 


 Respond to emergency situations both during and after normal working hours to receive and 
convey information needed for effective decision making and communication efforts.  


 Serve as the liaison between the school district and media to ensure accurate information is 
disseminated.  


 Develop and execute proactive media campaigns to advance District priorities.  


 Recommend and organize press conferences, public events, and district activities for the 
Superintendent. 


 Foster corporate sponsorships and grant opportunities.  


 Manage the district website and social media, ensuring all documents are updated and current. 


 Write the district newsletter; develop brochures, and other written materials. 


 Assist school sites in developing effective communication procedures through brochures, 
newsletters, websites, and other written materials.  


 Train administrators and staff on public relations on how to interact with the media.  


 Attend school, district and community events to gather the news, pictures, etc. for use in public 
information releases and promotions.  


 Identify needs and provide training, staff development or presentations to District employees, Board 
of Trustees, student and parent groups or community members on a variety of topics, as needed. 


 Strategize a public relations campaign for all directed activities to increase communication and 
awareness for the District and school sites. 


 Work collaboratively with administrators, staff members and community volunteers in 
planning/developing public relations programs and strategies for both one-way and two-way 
communications with diverse constituents. 


168/175







Public Information Officer  Page 2 of 3 
 


 Work collaboratively with and provide communication expertise to Superintendent's Cabinet and 
Executive Staff on a variety of Santa Cruz City Schools District projects and initiatives. 


 Perform other related duties as assigned by supervisor.  
 
REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  


 


Education and Experience: 


 Any combination equivalent to: Bachelor’s degree.  


 2 years of related experience.   


 


Licenses and other Requirements 


 Valid California driver’s license.  


 


Knowledge of:  


 Theories and principles of public administration, communications, public information, community 


dynamics, public relations, marketing, and media networking; techniques and practices for 


organizing internal and external communication programs and activities. 


 Impact of district, state, and federal government policies and procedures, and applicable sections 


of State Education Code related to providing service to a community. 


 A variety of technical platforms -- Adobe suite, web design, Microsoft, Publisher, Google Docs, as 


well as other content management systems, design software and social media platforms. 


 Best practices in public relations, marketing, communication, community relations and public 


Affairs. 


 District ethnic diversity, cultural, geographic, and socio-economic populations. 


 Fundamentals of writing, composition, layout and production of mass-media communications. 


 Correct English usage, grammar, spelling and punctuation, vocabulary, editing, and proofreading 


techniques. 


 Methods, techniques and procedures pertaining to the preparation of news releases, promotional 


brochures, video and print production, and other information materials including layout design 


fundamentals, branding, conceptualization, and photography; marketing and communications 


campaigns. 


 Principles and practices of time management and training. 


 Public speaking techniques. 


 Interpersonal skills, including tact, patience and courtesy. 


 


Ability to: 


 Review and interpret highly technical information, write technical materials, speak persuasively to 


implement desired actions, and analyze situations to define issues and draw conclusions. 


 Exhibit discretion and tact with information and communication with employees, the media public 


officials, and community groups. 


 Prepare and present written and oral reports to diverse audiences that effectively represent the 


school district to the community. 


 Work under time sensitive deadlines, pressures and with frequent interruptions. 


 Create professional quality graphics, audio and video using video editing software. 


 Maintain confidentiality. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  


 Indoor/Outdoor environment. 


 


169/175







Public Information Officer  Page 3 of 3 
 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by 


an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may 


be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


 While performing the duties of this job, the employee is frequently required to stand, walk, sit, talk, 


and listen.  


 The employee is occasionally required to reach with hands and arms and stoop, kneel, crouch, or 


crawl.  


 The employee must occasionally lift and/or move up to 50 pounds. 


 Specific vision abilities required by this job include close vision, distance vision, and the ability to 


adjust vision.  


 Required to be proficient in oral communication to deliver public communications. 


 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 


(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.   


 


Approved by Personnel Commission: TBD - On the agenda for meeting 12/1/2020 


Approved by Governing Board: TBD 


Salary Range: G (Management Salary Schedule) 


 


 


170/175







Public Information Officer for Construction & 
Facilities  Page 1 of 3 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


JOB DESCRIPTION 


PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER FOR CONSTRUCTION & FACILITIES  


 


DEFINITION: 


Under the direction of the Superintendent or designee, the Public Information Officer for Construction and 


Facilities serves as the conduit for district communication for all stakeholders on construction, facilities and 


bond projects, including reconstruction, modernization, maintenance alteration projects, relocation of 


school buildings, and other capital outlay projects. 


 


 


ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES:   


 Organize and manage all communication and public relations related to construction, facilities and 
bond projects in the district. 


 In coordination with Director of Maintenance, Operations and Transportation, coordinate the 
preparation for all meeting and agenda materials on behalf of the Bond and specifically for the Bond 
Oversight Committee (BOC).   


 Develop and communicate public information and public relations strategies in the District at all 
levels. 


 Develop and evaluate all venues of media to inform all public entities on all matters, as directed. 


 Inform District officials of status of projects through conferences and written correspondence. 


 Prepare analyses and reports as necessary for the Superintendent and School Board of Education. 


 Prepare and provide explanations on proposed and on-going building programs, projects and 
activities. 


 Supervise and ensure proper database administration activities including project report set-
up/preparation.  


 Receive and fulfill all Public Records Act requests in a timely manner. 


 Strategize a public relations campaign for all directed activities to increase communication and 
awareness for the district. 


 Plan, enhance, and advise site and district administrators, district personnel, and staff on all district 
construction, facilities and bond projects and programs in preparation for and dependent on various 
audiences. 


 Work with and on behalf of the Superintendent, or designee, to provide information to all levels of 
media, such as broadcasting, social media, recording, etc. 


 Recommend and organize press conferences, public events, and district activities for the 
Superintendent. 


 Develop and prepare all correspondence to public media that may include press releases, 
executive summaries, reports, highlight articles, and related materials. 


 Manage the district website and social media, ensuring all documents are updated and current. 


 Oversee and participate, as needed, in social media communication sites to communicate and 
ensure appropriate use of the media. 


 Plan philanthropic relationships with community and business as directed. 


 Provide staff development and presentations to District employees, School Board of Education, 
students, parent groups, and others.  


 Drive as needed in order to perform the essential functions of the job. 


 Perform related duties as assigned. 


 


 


171/175







Public Information Officer for Construction & 
Facilities  Page 2 of 3 
 


REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS:  


 


Education and Experience: 


 Any combination equivalent to: Bachelor’s degree.  


 2 years of related experience.   


 


Licenses and other Requirements 


 Valid California driver’s license.  


 


 Knowledge of:  


 Theories and principles of public administration, communications, public information, community 


dynamics, public relations, marketing, and media networking; techniques and practices for 


organizing internal and external communication programs and activities. 


 Impact of district, state, and federal government policies and procedures, and applicable sections 


of State Education Code related to providing service to a community. 


 A variety of technical platforms -- Adobe suite, web design, Microsoft, Publisher, Google Docs, as 


well as other content management systems, design software and social media platforms. 


 Best practices in public relations, marketing, communication, community relations and public 


affairs. 


 District ethnic diversity, cultural, geographic, and socio-economic populations. 


 Fundamentals of writing, composition, layout and production of mass-media communications. 


 Correct English usage, grammar, spelling and punctuation, vocabulary, editing, and proofreading 


techniques. 


 Methods, techniques and procedures pertaining to the preparation of news releases, promotional 


brochures, video and print production, and other information materials including layout design 


fundamentals, branding, conceptualization, and photography; marketing and communications 


campaigns. 


 Principles and practices of time management and training. 


 Public speaking techniques. 


 Interpersonal skills, including tact, patience and courtesy. 


 


Ability to: 


 Review and interpret highly technical information, write technical materials, speak persuasively to 


implement desired actions, and analyze situations to define issues and draw conclusions. 


 Exhibit discretion and tact with information and communication with employees, the media public 


officials, and community groups. 


 Prepare and present written and oral reports to diverse audiences that effectively represent the 


school district to the community. 


 Create professional quality graphics, audio and video using video editing software. 


 Work under time sensitive deadlines, pressures and with frequent interruptions. 


 Maintain confidentiality. 


 


WORKING CONDITIONS: 


Work Environment:  


 Indoor/Outdoor environment. 


  


172/175







Public Information Officer for Construction & 
Facilities  Page 3 of 3 
 


 


Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by 


an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may 


be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions. 


 Some lifting 20 - 30 Ibs. 


 Carrying, pushing, and/or pulling. 


 Some stooping, kneeling, crouching, and significant fine finger dexterity. 


The information contained in this job description is for compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act 


(A.D.A.) and is not an exhaustive list of the duties performed.   


 


Approved by Personnel Commission: TBD - On the agenda for meeting 12/1/2020 


Approved by Governing Board: TBD 


Salary Range: G (Management Salary Schedule) 


 


173/175







 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.4.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Bond Project & Maintenance, Operations and Transportation 
Reorganization  


     
MEETING DATE:  December 2, 2020 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In November 2016, Measures A & B were passed by voters raising $208 million to support 
facilities repairs and modernization in both the elementary and secondary districts.  
Since the initial bond sale in early 2017, Santa Cruz City Schools has been able to make positive 
facilities improvements with bond projects on each campus.  
 
To date, the district has implemented the Bond program with limited dedicated staff.  The Bond 
currently funds 1.6 FTE -- a 1.0 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) Project Manager - 
Construction/Facilities  and a .6 FTE  Project Coordinator.  
 
The Board has requested that staff work to increase and refine communication about Bond 
projects asking that staff identify either a position or contract to support strategic 
communication.  A proposal to address this request is also included in this Board book.  As the 
bond projects have progressed, the Board has also inquired as to what additional assistance 
may be needed to continue and maintain the bond program pace.  
 
Staff is proposing a restructuring of the facilities team to allow for more dedicated support to 
the Bond program.  The Director of Maintenance, Operations, and Transportation, who is also 
serving as Bond Projects Director, could use additional support with bond project management.  
To achieve this, staff are proposing that we eliminate the Supervisor Custodial - Grounds - 
Maintenance and fill the existing vacant job classification of Assistant Director of Facilities, 
Maintenance and Operations.  Critical in this change is the added responsibility of taking on 
bond project management and assistance as a liaison with contractors, subcontractors, 
architects and staff. The Assistant Director would continue to provide supervision to 
maintenance, grounds and operations staff. As proposed, .4 FTE of the Assistant Director will be 
dedicated to bond projects. Adding this FTE would bring bond funded staff to a total of 2.0 FTE.  
In addition, staff propose creating a Lead Custodial position, one to support training, supply 
ordering, and equipment needs.  To ensure our sites’ needs are met, staff also propose adding 
an additional .5 FTE custodian.    
 
Based on discussion and direction of the board, staff would bring an updated job description for 
the Assistant Director of Facilities, Maintenance and Operations and for a Lead Custodian to the 


174/175







 


 AGENDA ITEM: 8.4.3.1. 


Personnel Commission and subsequently, to the board for approval. The position of Assistant 
Director of Facility Services will support bond projects, oversee day to day maintenance 
projects, and oversee custodial and grounds maintenance.  The position is essential to meeting 
the expectations, deadlines, fiscal component of all the projects.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 


Estimated Cost Description Funding Source 


$ 20,700.00  Difference between cost of 
Custodial Supervisor & 
Assistant Director of 
Maintenance and Operations  


.4 Measures A & B ($69,000 
including benefits) 
.6 LCFF Base Unrestricted 
($102,000 including benefits) 
Class F 


$20,000 Difference between cost of 
Head Custodian a Lead 
Custodian  


LCFF Base Unrestricted 


$ 52,000 .5 Additional Custodian  LCFF Base Unrestricted 


Total: $99,000 


  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
  


175/175





		Agenda 12.02.20 Special Meeting

		Superintendent&apos;s Report

		Meeting October 21, 2020

		Meeting October 28, 2020

		Meeting November 4, 2020

		Meeting November 9, 2020 

		8.1.1. Board Cover sheet new truck F250 Nov 2020

		8.1.1. Ford F250 Quote

		8.1.2. Board Cover Amayas Locating Harbor

		8.1.2. Amaya Locating Service Quote

		8.1.3. Super Co-op Annual Renewal of Service Board Cover

		8.1.3. COOP Annual Renewal 20-21

		8.1.4. Board Cover sheet Mission Hill Geo H. Wilson

		8.1.4. Geo H. Wilson MHMS

		8.1.5. Board Cover SCHS Geo H. Wilson

		8.1.5. 60510045 EWP 499.02 (1) SCHS

		8.1.6. Board Cover Gault Geo H. Wilson

		8.1.6. 60510049 EWP 499.01 (1) Gault

		8.1.7. Board Cover Westlake Geo H. Wilson

		8.1.7. 60510050 EWP 499.01 (1) WL

		8.2.1. Development Group Inc Change Order 3 Branciforte Middle School Network Cabling Cover

		8.2.1. Development Group Inc Change Order 3 Branciforte Middle School Network Cabling

		8.2.2. Development Group Inc Change Order 3 Gault Elementary School Data Installation Cover

		8.2.2. Development Group Inc Change Order 3 Gault Elementary School Data Installation

		8.2.3. Development Group Inc Proposal Westlake Elementary School Network Cabling Cover

		8.2.3. Development Group Inc Proposal Westlake Elementary School Network Cabling

		8.2.4. Kleinfelder Proposal Geotechnial Services Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education Cover

		8.2.4. Kleinfelder Proposal Geotechnial Services Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education

		8.2.5. Moore Twining Proposal Santa Cruz High School Geotechnical Engineering New Switchgear Cover

		8.2.5. Moore Twining Proposal Santa Cruz High School Geotechnical Engineering New Switchgear

		8.2.6. Moore Twining Change Order 1 Santa Cruz High School Underground Utility Replacement Special Inspection and Materials Testing Cover

		8.2.6. Moore Twining Change Order 1 Santa Cruz High School Underground Utility Replacement Special Inspection and Materials Testing

		8.2.7. Netxperts Inc. Proposal Districtwide Router Installation Cover

		8.2.7. Netxperts Inc. Proposal Districtwide Router Installation

		8.2.8. Nor Cal Catering Truck Repair Quote Food Truck Fabrication Cover

		8.2.8. Nor Cal Catering Truck Repair Quote Food Truck Fabrication

		8.2.9. Palace Business Solutions Proposal Soquel High School Science Tables Cover

		8.2.9. Palace Business Solutions Proposal Soquel High School Science Tables

		8.2.10. PSR Electric Proposal Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education Electrical Safe Off Cover

		8.2.10. PSR Electric Proposal Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education Electrical Safe Off

		8.2.11. PSR Electric Proposal Mission Hill Middle School Switchgear Electrical Work Cover

		8.2.11. PSR Electric Proposal Mission Hill Middle School Switchgear Electrical Work

		8.2.12. PSR Electric Proposal Santa Cruz High School Switchgear Electrical Work Cover

		8.2.12. PSR Electric Proposal Santa Cruz High School Switchgear Electrical Work

		8.2.13. Santa Cruz Signs Quote Westlake Elementary School Lift Signage Cover

		8.2.13. Santa Cruz Signs Quote Westlake Elementary School Lift Signage

		8.2.14. Sierra School Equipment Change Order 1 Soquel High School Classroom Furniture Installation Cover

		8.2.14. Sierra School Equipment Change Order 1 Soquel High School Classroom Furniture Installation

		8.2.15. Waterproofing Associates Contract Harbor High School PA Building Roof Cover

		8.2.15. Waterproofing Associates Contract Harbor High School PA Building Roof

		Hybrid Implementation Timeline 12.2.20

		Hybrid Timeline Cover 12.02.20

		8.4.2.1. Board Cover Communications

		8.4.2.1. Public Information Officer.Draft

		8.4.2.1. Public Information Officer for Constr_Facilites.Draft

		Staff Report_ Bond Project &amp; Maintenance, Operations and Transportation Reorganization




